
 
 

 
 

 
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021  Fax: (01684) 272040 

Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk 

21 August 2020 
 

Committee Overview and Scrutiny 

Date Tuesday, 1 September 2020 

Time of Meeting 4:30 pm 

This is a remote meeting in accordance with the Local Authorities 
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and 

Wales) Regulations 2020. 

Members of the public will be able to view this meeting whilst it is 
in session by clicking on the link that will be available on the 

Agenda publication page immediately prior to the commencement 
of the meeting. 

 

Agenda 

 

1.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
   
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
   
 To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions.   
   
3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare any 
interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to which the 
approved Code applies. 

 

   
4.   MINUTES 1 - 10 
   
 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2020.  
  

 
 
 
 

 

mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk
http://minutes.tewkesbury.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=


 Item Page(s) 

 

 2 

 
5.   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 11 - 19 
   
 To determine whether there are any questions for the relevant Lead 

Members and what support the Overview and Scrutiny Committee can 
give to work contained within the Plan. 

 

   
6.   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

2020/21 
20 - 34 

   
 To approve the revised Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work 

Programme 2020/21. 
 

   
7.   CITIZENS' ADVICE BUREAU PRESENTATION  
   
 To consider the annual update on Citizens’ Advice Bureau activity in the 

borough.  
 

   
8.   GLOUCESTERSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL UPDATE 35 - 36 
   
 To receive an update from the Council’s representative on matters 

considered at the last meeting (17 July 2020).  
 

   
9.   GLOUCESTERSHIRE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE UPDATE 
37 - 38 

   
 To receive an update from the Council’s representative on matters 

considered at the last meeting (14 July 2020).  
 

   
10.   GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

UPDATE 
39 - 43 

   
  To receive an update from the Council’s representative on matters 

considered at the last meeting (2 July 2020). 
 

   
11.   COMPLAINTS REPORT 44 - 57 
   
 To consider the annual update to provide assurance that complaints are 

managed effectively and determine whether any further action is required. 
 

   
12.   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 58 - 90 
   
 To approve the annual report, as required by the Council’s Constitution, to 

ensure that the activities of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
promoted, both internally and publicly, to reinforce transparency and 
accountability in the democratic process.  

 

   
13.   SEPARATE BUSINESS  
   
 The Chair will move the adoption of the following resolution: 

 
That under Section 100(A)(4) Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Act. 

 

  
 

 



 Item Page(s) 

 

 3 

14.   TRADE WASTE SERVICES  
   
 (Exempt –Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 

Act 1972 –Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)) 
 
To receive a progress update and presentation on the detailed business 
case on the pilot proposal and other third party options.  

 

   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

TUESDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2020 

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE 

Councillors: G J Bocking, C L J Carter, K J Cromwell (Chair), P A Godwin, H C McLain,                     
P D McLain, H S Munro, J W Murphy (Vice-Chair), J K Smith, R J G Smith, S A T Stevens,              
P D Surman, S Thomson, M J Williams and P N Workman  

  

 
Substitution Arrangements  
 
The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
Recording of Meetings  
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded. 
.  



 

 

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held remotely on 

Tuesday, 14 July 2020 commencing at 4:30 pm 
 

 
Present: 

 
Chair Councillor K J Cromwell 
Vice Chair Councillor J W Murphy 

 
and Councillors: 

 
G J Bocking, C L J Carter, P A Godwin, H C McLain, P D McLain, H S Munro, J K Smith,                          

R J G Smith, P D Surman, S Thomson and P N Workman 
 

OS.1 ANNOUNCEMENTS  

1.1 The Chair advised that the meeting was being held under the emergency provisions 
of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and, specifically, the Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020.  The meeting was being 
broadcast live via the internet, it was not being recorded by the Council but, under 
the usual transparency rules, it may be being recorded by others.  

OS.2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

2.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of 
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from 1 
July 2012. 

2.2  There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion. 

OS.3 MINUTES  

3.1  The Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2020, copies of which had been 
circulated, were approved as a correct record.  

OS.4 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT - QUARTER 4 AND FULL YEAR 2019/20  

4.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 16-60, 
attached performance management information for quarter four of 2019/20.  The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee was asked to review and scrutinise the 
performance information and, where appropriate, identify any issues to refer to the 
Executive Committee for clarification or further action to be taken. 

4.2 Members were advised that this was the final quarterly monitoring report for 
2019/20.  Progress against delivering the objectives and actions for each of the 
Council Plan priorities was reported through the performance tracker, attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report, which was a combined document that also included a set 
of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).  This was the last report in relation to the 
2016-20 Council Plan; the next performance tracker would be based on the new 
Council Plan 2020-24 which had been approved by Council on 28 January 2020 
and included two new priority areas in relation to sustainable environment and 

1

Agenda Item 4



OS.14.07.20 

 

Garden Towns.  As set out at Paragraph 1.3 of the report, Members were reminded 
that, in business as usual times, the performance tracker was supported by a range 
of financial information; however, as a result of the response required to the COVID-
19 pandemic, both internal and external resources had been redeployed and there 
had been an impact on timescales associated with the closedown of the Council’s 
accounts.  In addition, the valuations and estimations required to produce an outturn 
position had been complicated by the unknown impact of COVID-19, as such the 
national timetable for completion of the accounts had been moved from July to 
November and the Council’s own internal timetable had been adjusted to allow the 
outturn report to be presented to the Executive Committee at its meeting on 8 July 
2020. 

4.3 Key actions for the quarter were highlighted at Paragraph 2.3 of the report and 
included the Council’s commercial property portfolio being bolstered by the 
acquisition of a further two properties; the success of the Growth Hub in terms of 
providing support to the business community in tackling the impact of COVID-19; 
the submission of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan to government for examination; 
and the commissioning of a strategic review to look at the Council’s tourism 
provision.  The Head of Corporate Services reminded Members that, due to the 
complex nature of the actions being delivered, it was inevitable that some would not 
progress as smoothly or quickly as envisaged and the details of these were set out 
at Paragraph 2.4 of the report.  It was noted that the latter period of the quarter also 
saw Council services being heavily affected by COVID-19 and resources being 
prioritised to deal with the response which had resulted in some actions being 
suspended. 

4.4 In terms of the KPIs, Members were informed that the status of each indicator was 
set out at Paragraph 3.2 of the report. From the 17 indicators with targets, eight had 
been achieved and nine had not been achieved. KPIs where the direction of travel 
was down, and the indicator was below target, were set out at Paragraph 3.3. of the 
report and these included KPIs 12, 13 and 14 in relation to planning performance; 
KPI 27 regarding absence management and KPIs 28 and 29 with regard to waste 
and recycling.  Key areas where KPIs were performing particularly well were 
included at Paragraph 3.4 of the report and specific reference was made to KPI 7 in 
relation to the number of visitors entering the Growth Hub and KPIs 21 and 22 in 
respect of the average number of days to process new benefits claims and change 
of circumstances claims. 

4.5 During the debate which ensued, the following queries and comments were made in 
relation to the Performance Tracker: 

Priority: Finance and Resources 

P29 – Objective 3 – Action a) 
Deliver the aims and 
objectives of the commercial 
property investment strategy 
– A Member sought 
clarification as to the number 
of properties that had actually 
been purchased as the 
information within this report 
conflicted with the financial 
report that had been 
considered by the Executive 
Committee the previous 
week.  

The Head of Finance and Asset Management 
explained that this was a timing issue - the 
information within the performance tracker 
reflected quarter four of 2019/20 and the 
commercial premises had not been acquired 
during the 2019/20 financial year.  Since that 
time, the acquisition of an industrial park in 
Tipton had been finalised and contracts had 
also been exchanged in relation to a 
premises in Crawley.  He believed these 
would be the Council’s final two purchases 
given the impact of COVID-19 on various 
commercial sectors and due to restrictions on 
borrowing from the Public Works Loans 
Board. 

2



OS.14.07.20 

 

P29 – Objective 3 – Action b) 
Undertake a review of the 
discretionary trade waste 
service to ensure it is 
operating on a viable 
commercial level – A Member 
noted that the target date for 
this action had been changed 
numerous times and he 
sought assurance that the 
new date of September 2020 
was achievable. 

The Head of Community Services explained 
that the most recent delay was as a result of 
COVID-19 and a meeting had been held with 
the Association of Public Service Excellence 
(APSE), which had been appointed to 
undertake the review, to discuss the market 
analysis just three days prior to lockdown.  All 
businesses had subsequently closed so it 
had been impossible to make contact with 
them in order to carry out the analysis.  He 
confirmed that work had now restarted and 
would tie in with the business surveys being 
carried out on the High Street.  Whilst 
September would be too early to bring 
forward the full business case as originally 
planned, an update would be provided to the 
Committee at its meeting on 1 September 
2020. 

P31 – Objective 4 – Action b) 
Disposal of the Ministry of 
Agriculture, Food and 
Fisheries (MAFF) site – A 
Member recognised that this 
was linked to the Parking 
Strategy Review and noted 
that the Working Group had 
not met since February.  

The Head of Finance and Asset Management 
explained that he had started work on a 
revised timetable for the review and it was 
proposed that a Working Group meeting be 
held in September to seek Members’ views 
as to whether the work to date could be 
continued or if there was a need to start from 
scratch.  As such, the timeframe for the 
review would be dictated by Members and 
the approach they wanted to take. 

A Member expressed the view that the MAFF 
site was also connected to Spring Gardens 
and the regeneration of Tewkesbury town 
centre – both sites had been problematic 
prior to COVID-19 and he felt they could be 
even more of an issue going forward.  In his 
view, it was important to find the right 
solutions and he raised concern that the new 
target date of October 2020 would not be 
achievable.  The Head of Finance and Asset 
Management was in complete agreement and 
explained that the new target date had been 
set before Officers fully understood the 
impact of COVID-19 on resources; as such, 
Members could expect this date to change in 
the quarter one performance tracker once a 
realistic timescale had been established 
through working with consultants and 
Members. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

3



OS.14.07.20 

 

Priority: Promoting and Supporting Economic Growth 

P32 – Objective 2 – Action a) 
Deliver employment land 
through the Joint Core 
Strategy (JCS) and 
Tewkesbury Borough Plan – 
A Member noted that the date 
for the JCS had been revised 
again having previously been 
amended twice and 
questioned whether this was 
realistic.  In addition, he 
asked how many employment 
sites would be changed to 
housing, as was the case in 
Longford where a site 
designated for employment 
land had now had an 
application approved for 
housing. 

The Interim Head of Development Services 
explained that this action had initially been 
based around a less extensive review of the 
JCS; however, things had moved on and a 
full JCS review was now required.  In 
addition, there had been an initial delay to 
allow recruitment to a key post within the 
Planning Policy team to enable the review to 
be undertaken.  She had spoken with the 
Planning Policy Manager and JCS Manager 
who were confident that consultation would 
take place before Christmas.  She explained 
that a lot of evidence-based research had 
been programmed to support the review prior 
to consultation so this target date was 
considered to be reasonable given the scale 
of the JCS and the amount of work that went 
into bringing the programme forward.  
Notwithstanding this, the national policy 
statement that was coming forward later in 
the month could have an impact on the 
timeframe. 

In terms of employment land, she advised 
that this would be brought forward within the 
JCS review and would be underpinned by a 
significant amount of evidence-based 
research.  The strategic sites had not been 
identified as yet although the Tewkesbury 
Borough Plan was due to be examined and 
significant weight could be attached to the 
policies within it.  Planning applications 
coming forward were being dealt with on their 
own merits. 

P36 – Objective 5 – Action b)  
Review the tourism resources 
to maximise the tourist 
provisions in the borough – A 
Member questioned why the 
independent tourism review 
had not been commissioned 
given that the original target 
date for completion was April 
2019 which had subsequently 
been changed several times 
and had last been reported as 
March 2020 therefore should 
have been relatively 
unaffected by COVID-19. 

The Interim Head of Development Services 
explained that her understanding was that a 
significant amount of discussions had been 
taking place internally, particularly with 
respect to the Tourist Information Centres; 
however, she would provide a briefing note to 
update Members more fully following the 
meeting.  The Deputy Chief Executive 
advised that the Community and Economic 
Development Manager was the lead officer 
overseeing this work; however, the review 
was a commissioned piece of work and the 
proposed consultants had a good amount of 
experience in the area having done similar 
reviews for Cheltenham Borough Council and 
other local authorities.  He recognised this 
was a workstream prior to COVID-19 and 
would need to find out why the review had 
not been commissioned earlier and report 
back to Members outside of the meeting. 
 

4



OS.14.07.20 

 

Priority: Growing and Supporting Communities 

P38 – Objective 1 – Action a) 
Work with partners to 
undertake the required 
reviews to the JCS – A 
Member noted that the 
commentary stated that the 
target date had been 
amended from spring 2020 to 
reflect more up-to-date 
timescales and he sought 
clarification as to the reason 
for the timescale slipping. 

The Interim Head of Development Services 
confirmed that the revised target date of 
winter 2020 was a realistic timescale and she 
reiterated her earlier point that the intention 
had originally been that this would be a 
review of the existing JCS as opposed to a 
full scale JCS review coming forward.  She 
confirmed that the amendment to the 
timetable was not related to COVID-19 and 
was for programme management and 
resourcing reasons.  The Member felt this 
should have been explained in the 
commentary and the Interim Head of 
Development Services undertook to ensure 
the tracker provided a more comprehensive 
explanation in quarter one of 2020/21. 

P43 – Objective 3 – Action b) 
Achieve the Council’s 
affordable homes target by 
working with local housing 
providers – A Member noted 
that 191 affordable homes 
had been delivered within the 
year against a target of 220 
and he queried whether 
affordable homes in urban 
extensions, such as 
Brockworth, counted towards 
Tewkesbury Borough 
Council’s figures or 
Gloucester City Council’s 
figures.  He raised concern 
that if it was the latter, there 
would be less and less space 
within the borough for 
affordable homes and he 
questioned what the long 
term impact of that would be 
and if the target for this action 
should be reduced 
accordingly. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Head of Community Services confirmed 
that anything being built within the urban 
extensions did count towards the figures for 
Tewkesbury Borough as its residents had 
equal status to bid on those properties.  
Longer term, he suggested there would be a 
need to report this as a separate KPI so that 
Members could easily see what had been 
delivered within the urban extensions and 
that was something which could be 
considered during the development of the 
new Housing Strategy. 

5



OS.14.07.20 

 

P44 – Objective 4 – Action a) 
Develop a programme to 
work with landlords to ensure 
residents have a supply of 
rented properties to meet 
their needs – A Member 
noted there had been three 
placements under the 
scheme but the information 
did not set out how many 
people needed rented 
properties, as such, it was 
impossible to know whether 
this action was being 
achieved and if the smiley 
face attributed to it was 
justified. 

The Head of Community Services advised 
that six placements had now been made.  
The number of people on the housing register 
currently was 1,108 but not all of those 
people would be suitable for private rented 
accommodation.  The pilot scheme was 
about providing incentives to encourage 
private sector landlords to accept more 
tenants and it was intended to bring a report 
on this to a future meeting of the Committee 
so Members would receive more detail in due 
course. 

Key performance indicators for priority: Growing and supporting 
communities 

P47 – KPI 10 – Total number 
of active applications on the 
housing register – A Member 
indicated that the breakdown 
of bands i.e. emergency, 
gold, silver and bronze 
totalled 1,676 which was not 
equal to the quarter four 
outturn which was stated as 
1,775.  

The Head of Community Services explained 
that this was due to a timing issue; banding 
changed on a daily basis so the information 
needed to be extracted from the system at 
the same time as the number of applications.  
He apologised that had not been done on this 
occasion and undertook to ensure the figures 
were extracted at the same time when 
producing future reports. 

Priority: Customer Focused Services 

P50 – Objective 1 – Action b) 
To continue to proactively 
enforce against enviro-crimes 
including fly-tipping and dog 
fouling in accordance with the 
action plan – A Member 
wished to thank the 
Environmental Health team 
for their hard work during the 
lockdown period when there 
had been increased incidents 
of noise complaints and fly-
tipping etc.  The feedback he 
had received from the way 
Officers had been supporting 
people, particularly in respect 
of noise, had been very 
positive. 

 

 

 
 

The Head of Community Services undertook 
to pass thanks on to the Environmental 
Health team on behalf of the Committee. 

6



OS.14.07.20 

 

P50 – Objective 1 – Action d) 
Review our Advice and 
Information Centres (AICs) -  
A Member expressed the 
view that the AICs were 
duplicating some of the 
services that were provided 
through other methods, for 
example, the Community 
team and Members, and he 
felt that a review needed to 
be carried out as quickly as 
possible. 

The Head of Corporate Services advised that 
the AICs had been reviewed by an Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Working Group on 
two occasions in the past and it was felt that 
another review was timely to establish 
whether they were providing value for money 
given that the landscape for customer 
engagement had changed significantly in 
recent years.  He felt there was probably a 
difference in the role played by the Customer 
Services Advisers who worked in the AICs 
and that of Members and Community 
Services Officers and advised that some of 
their tasks included things such as taking 
payments and collecting housing benefit 
applications etc. but he took the point that 
there may be other ways to do this which 
offered more value for money.  Whilst it had 
originally been intended to establish another 
Working Group to carry out a review, COVID-
19 was likely to have a significant impact on 
the Council’s budget going forward and the 
AICs may be one area where savings could 
be made, as such, it may now be more 
appropriate to consider the AICs as part of 
the revised budget proposals.  The Head of 
Finance and Asset Management echoed 
these comments and advised that work on 
the new Medium Term Financial Strategy was 
due to start later in the month.  There would 
undoubtedly be some serious financial 
pressures as existing budget pressures had 
been exacerbated by COVID-19 and the 
Council would have some difficult decisions 
to make over the next 12 months to three 
years. 

P52 – Objective 3 – Action a) 
Explore options to provide 
online public access to 
interactive planning policy 
information maps – A 
Member raised concern that 
the target date for this was 
now March 2021; given that it 
was an action to ‘explore 
options’ as opposed to 
actually delivering anything 
he was surprised that little 
progress had been made. 

 

 

 

 

The Interim Head of Development Services 
accepted this point and undertook to clarify 
the wording so that Members understood 
what had been achieved to date and what 
was proposed going forward. 

7



OS.14.07.20 

 

P52 – Objective 3 – Action b) 
Introduce the option for 
paperless billing for Council 
tax and business rates – A 
Member noted that, at the last 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting, 
Members had been informed 
that this had been delayed 
due to an issue with a third 
party and he questioned 
whether any financial costs 
incurred would be recovered. 

The Head of Corporate Services confirmed 
there had been an issue with the contract 
supplier and discussions were ongoing 
between One Legal and the supplier’s legal 
team; he undertook to provide an update on 
the outcome of those discussions as part of 
the next performance management report.  
He went on to advise that an in-house 
solution was on the cusp of being launched 
for the ad-hoc billing prior to COVID-19 but 
those resources had been redeployed 
elsewhere.  He was hopeful of a solution 
being in place in time for the main billing run 
in February 2021. 

Key performance indicators for priority: Customer focused services 

P54 – KPI 18 – Number of 
reported enviro-crimes – A 
Member was disappointed to 
note the increase in fly-tipping 
and abandoned vehicles and 
questioned whether there 
was a particular reason for 
this during the quarter. 

The Head of Community Services indicated 
that no intelligence had been received to 
explain the increase which had been 
experienced countywide, although closure of 
the Household Recycling Centres at the end 
of the financial year may have had some 
impact.  He provided assurance that 
prosecutions and court cases were being 
advertised and promoted so he did not think 
this was a reason for the increase, although 
that did not make it any less disappointing.  It 
was noted that the restrictions at the 
Household Recycling Centres were being 
eased with additional timeslots being 
introduced so they would soon be operating 
at full capacity. 

P57 – KPI 27 – Average 
number of sick days per full-
time equivalent – A Member 
raised concern that the 
average number of sick days 
per full time equivalent for 
2019/20 was 12.6 which 
seemed quite high particularly 
compared to the national 
average of 4.4 per employee.  
She noted that this had been 
attributed to the amount of 
long term sickness absences 
but she sought assurance 
about the amount of short 
term absences and whether 
next year’s target could be 
more ambitious. 

The Head of Corporate Services indicated 
that he could not comment on the national 
average but he understood that the average 
number of sick days within the public sector 
was eight in accordance with the Council’s 
target for 2019/20.  The situation was 
improving in quarter one of 2020/21 with the 
average number of sick days currently being 
reported as 2.09 per full-time equivalent; if 
COVID-19 related absences were removed 
this would be as low as 1.58 days per full-
time equivalent.  He reiterated that long term 
absences had impacted on the figures for 
2019/20 and, unfortunately, there had been a 
lot of significant illnesses which could not 
have been avoided but he was pleased to 
report that a lot of the staff affected had now 
returned to work.  All KPIs and their targets 
were being reviewed as part of the new 
performance tracker so the suggestion to set 
a more ambitious target for sickness absence 
would be considered as part of that. 

8



OS.14.07.20 

 

A Member indicated that the biggest issue 
was actually short term sickness which had 
seen a 40% increase between 2018/19 and 
2019/20.  He questioned how much of this 
was down to sheltering due to COVID-19 and 
how short term sickness was controlled and 
monitored.  In response, the Head of 
Corporate Services explained that the new 
HR Manager had been in post since 
December 2019 and had been tasked with 
looking into ways to improve short term 
sickness absence.  He provided assurance 
that the Council had a robust Absence 
Management Policy and HR worked closely 
with Managers to ensure due process was 
followed if the triggers within the policy were 
hit.  He advised that 29 days were attributable 
to COVID-19 and they only related to people 
who could not physically work; those who 
were sheltering or symptomatic but able to 
work were not included. 

P58 – KPI 28 – Percentage of 
waste recycled or composted 
– A Member questioned 
whether the percentage was 
actually down or whether this 
could be attributed to the 
amount, for instance, if it was 
based on weight then things 
such as manufacturers 
making packaging lighter 
could be a contributing factor, 
and he queried whether it 
was being measured in the 
most accurate way. 

The Head of Community Services confirmed 
that the KPI was based on the percentage of 
waste that went for recycling and was the 
standard measure used by the government to 
set targets.  The national target for England 
was 50% and the average for Gloucestershire 
was 44% so Tewkesbury Borough Council 
continued to perform well comparatively; he 
pointed out that 43% more waste – both 
residual and recycling - had been collected 
during April and May 2020.  He was unsure 
how helpful information on weight would be 
but was happy to include this in the narrative 
if Members so wished.  He suggested that the 
sad face attributed to this KPI may be 
misleading as Tewkesbury Borough was 
within the upper quartile in the country and 
exceeded the national 50% target for 
2019/20. 

4.6 A Member noted that the financial information had been reported to the Executive 
Committee the previous week and he had been surprised to learn of the significant 
Ubico overspend.  His understanding was that this had been addressed and he 
questioned whether other local authority partners were having a similar experience.  
In response, the Head of Finance and Asset Management confirmed that the Ubico 
overspend had been anticipated.  He advised that £100,000 had been set aside 
within the Council’s reserves as an extra resource for grounds maintenance and an 
additional £50,000 had been incurred on the depot allocation which had been 
agreed in the early part of 2019/20 after budget-setting and reflected the increased 
usage of the Swindon Lane Depot due to new vehicles and separating out of rounds 
etc.  In terms of the remainder, approximately £80,000 related to corporate costs 
which had been identified in year and was also an issue for other authorities within 
Ubico.  The Managing Director of Ubico had attended Executive Committee to 
explain the reasons for the overspend and Officers were now happy with the way 
things were accounted for and reported. Once these issues had been removed, the 

9



OS.14.07.20 

 

overspend was actually quite small and reflected things such as a vehicle purchase 
in the autumn.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management recognised that the 
overspend was disappointing but he provided assurance that a lot of it had been 
known about and taken care of, either within the budget or as a result of a much 
enhanced reporting regime. 

4.7 The Chair asked that thanks be passed on to all staff on behalf of the Committee for 
their hard work during the COVID-19 outbreak; the way they had communicated and 
continued to carry out their jobs, alongside other tasks which were not business as 
usual, had been very impressive.  The Deputy Chief Executive undertook to pass 
this on and he wished to thank Members for their ongoing support during this 
difficult time.  The day to day contact and local intelligence that Members had fed 
back about community and voluntary groups etc. had been invaluable in aiding the 
COVID-19 response.   

4.8 In terms of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme going forward, 
the Head of Corporate Services explained that COVID-19 had inevitably had an 
impact on future Agenda items and a revised Work Programme had subsequently 
been pulled together for consideration by the Corporate Management Team the 
following week.  The revised Work Programme would be brought to the next 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting for approval.  The Deputy Chief 
Executive confirmed that there was a need to reprioritise key workstreams and a 
revised performance tracker would be presented to the Committee to illustrate the 
proposed changes.  Going forward, the recovery plan tracker would be presented 
alongside the performance tracker on a quarterly basis so the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee would have full oversight of the actions being undertaken and 
could monitor progress over the coming months.  The Head of Corporate Services 
confirmed that the next performance management report would be brought to the 
Committee on 13 October, as opposed to 1 September, in order to allow adequate 
time to review the KPIs and to compile the new recovery tracker. 

4.9 Having considered the information provided, it was 

RESOLVED That the performance management information for quarter four of 
2019/20 be NOTED. 

 The meeting closed at 5:40 pm 

 
 

10



1 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 2020/21 
 
REGULAR ITEM: 

 Forward Plan – To note the forthcoming items. 
 

Committee Date: 26 August 2020       

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Management 
Report – Quarter Four 
2019/20. 

To receive and respond to the findings of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee‘s 
review of the quarter four performance 
management information. 

Head of Corporate Services.  Yes – July Committee moved due to 
pandemic. 

Financial Update – Quarter 
One 2020/21. 

To consider the quarterly budget position. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Money Laundering Policy.  To approve the Money Laundering 
Policy following a recommendation 
from the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  

Head of Corporate Services. Moved to ‘pending’ section for 
Counter Fraud Unit to write Policy 
prior to it being considered by the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  

High Level Service Plan 
Summaries (Annual). 

To consider the key activities of each 
service grouping during 2020/21. 

Head of Corporate Services. No longer required as covered in 
the report to Executive Committee 
05.08.20. 

Retained Business Rates 
Update. 

To receive an update.  Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.  

No longer required as covered in 
the report to Executive Committee 
10.06.20. 

11

A
genda Item

 5



2 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date: 26 August 2020       

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme and Council Tax 
Discounts 2021/22. 

To consider and make a 
recommendation to Council.  

Revenues and Benefits 
Manager.  

No.  

Confidential Item: 
Irrecoverable Debts Write-
Off Report (Quarterly). 

To consider the write-off of irrecoverable 
debts.  

Head of Corporate Services. Not required.  

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)). 

Confidential Item: Cleeve 
Common Lease  

To consider the Cleeve Common Lease.   Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.  

No.   

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



3 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date: 7 October 2020     

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Tewkesbury Together 
2020/21. 

To agree a grant to Tewkesbury 
Together 2020/21. 

Head of Development Services.  Yes – April Committee cancelled 
due to pandemic. 

Confidential Item: 
Recycling Matters.  

To bring to the attention of the 
Committee and to consider emerging 
issues affecting the Council’s 
recycling service.  

Head of Community Services.  Yes – deferred from August 
Committee as negotiations 
ongoing.  

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information)). 

 
 13



4 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date:  18 November 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Management 
Report – Quarter One 
2020/21. 

To receive and respond to the findings 
of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee‘s review of the quarter one 
performance management 
information. 

Head of Corporate Services.  Yes – moved from 7 October to 
accommodate later consideration 
by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  

Financial Update – Quarter 
Two 2020/21. 

To consider the quarterly budget position. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Wormington Village Hall 
Grant Update 

To receive an update on the 
discussions in respect of the 
Wormington Village Hall grant 
following the decision of Executive 
Committee on 8 January 2020.  

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management / Deputy Chief 
Executive  

Yes – deferred from August 
meeting due to the COVID-19 
pandemic.   

Corporate Enforcement 
Policy. 

To receive a recommendation from 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services.  No. 

Money Laundering Policy.  To approve the Money Laundering 
Policy following a recommendation 
from the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services.  Yes – Moved from August meeting 
to enable consideration by the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  

Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers (RIPA) 

To receive a recommendation from the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  

Head of Corporate Services.  Yes – April Committee cancelled 
due to pandemic.  

14



5 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date:  18 November 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Confidential Item: 
Irrecoverable Debts Write-
Off Report (Quarterly). 

To consider the write-off of irrecoverable 
debts.  

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)). 

 
 
 
 

15



6 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date:  6 January 2021    

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Management 
Report – Quarter Two 
2020/21. 

To receive and respond to the findings of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee‘s 
review of the quarter two performance 
management information. 

Head of Corporate Services.  No.  

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (Annual). 

To recommend to Council the adoption of 
the five-year MTFS which describes the 
financial environment the Council is 
operating in and the pressures it will face 
in delivering its services and a balanced 
budget over the period. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Housing Strategy Monitoring 
Report – Year One (Annual). 

To approve the Housing Strategy 
Monitoring Report.   

Housing Services Manager. No. 

Treasury and Capital 
Management (Annual) 

To approve and recommend approval to 
Council, a range of statutorily required 
polices and strategies relating to treasury 
and capital management.  

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.  

No.  

 
 

16



7 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date: 3 February 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Budget 2021/22 (Annual). To recommend a budget for 2021/22 to 
the Council.  

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Financial Update - Quarter 
Three 2020/21. 

To consider the quarterly budget position. Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

Confidential Item: 
Irrecoverable Debts Write-
Off Report (Quarterly). 

To consider the write-off of irrecoverable 
debts.  

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

(To be considered in private because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)). 

 
 

Committee Date: 3 March 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

    

 
 

17



8 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 

Committee Date: 31 March 2021     

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Management 
Report – Quarter Three 
2020/21. 

To receive and respond to the findings of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee‘s 
review of the quarter three performance 
management information. 

Head of Corporate Services.  No.  

Council Plan 2020/24 
Refresh (Annual). 

To consider the Council Plan and make a 
recommendation to Council. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

High Level Service Plan 
Summaries (Annual). 

To consider the key activities of each 
service grouping during 2019/20. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

COVID-19 Corporate 
Recovery Plan Refresh  

To consider the COVID-19 Corporate 
Recovery Plan.  

Deputy Chief Executive.  No.  

 
 

18



9 
Changes from previously published Plan shown in bold 

 

 
 
 
PENDING ITEMS 
 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item 

Shopfronts Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD). 

To agree the document for the purposes of consultation.  

Spring Gardens Regeneration Phase 1a 
report. 

To agree the recommendation of the preferred option for the regeneration of Spring Gardens. 

Trade Waste Review. Following recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

Parking Strategy Review. To consider the recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

Parking Strategy Review. To consider the statutory responses to the Parking Strategy Review.  

Infrastructure Funding Statement. To consider the Council’s Infrastructure Funding Statement. 

 
 
 

19



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting: 1 September 2020 

Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2020/21 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services  

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Organisational Development 

Number of Appendices: One  

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The work programme detailed in Appendix 1 provides the core work activities of the 
Committee. The programme has been reviewed and readjusted to take into account the 
Council’s response and recovery to COVID-19. This was undertaken in consultation with the 
Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee.  

The programme is a combination of standing agenda items such as Council Plan performance 
management information; additional reports requested as a result of scrutinising performance 
information; policy and strategy updates; and new areas of review that have emerged, for 
example, peer challenge action plan and COVID-19 recovery tracker. The programme remains 
flexible, allowing any other emerging areas identified during 2020/21 to be included.     

Recommendation: 

To APPROVE the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21.   

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee must deliver the work required of it as set out in the 
Council’s Constitution. This must be set within the context of the Council’s priority areas and 
the resources available to undertake the review.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has an annual budget of £1,000 to support delivery of 
its work programme.  

Legal Implications: 

None directly arising from this report.  

Risk Management Implications: 

Effective Overview and Scrutiny supports delivery of the Council’s vision, values and priorities.   

20

Agenda Item 6



Performance Management Follow-up: 

The work programme is a standing item on the agenda of each Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.   

Environmental Implications:  

None. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The work programme detailed in Appendix 1 provides the core work activities of the 
Committee. The programme has been reviewed and readjusted to take into account the 
Council’s response and recovery to COVID-19. This was undertaken in consultation with 
the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee. The programme is a combination of standing 
agenda items such as Council Plan performance management information; additional 
reports requested as a result of scrutinising performance information; policy and strategy 
updates; and new areas of review that have emerged, for example, peer challenge action 
plan and COVID-19 recovery tracker. The programme remains flexible, allowing any 
other emerging areas identified during 2020/21 to be included.     

2.0 2020/21 WORK PROGRAMME 

2.1 Some of the Committee’s work cannot be planned, for example, any new areas of review 
that may emerge during the year; referral of issues from Council; call-in of decisions etc. 
The programme is therefore based upon what is known at this point in time.    

2.2 The final column in the work programme provides Members with an audit trail of the 
original date when the item was to be considered. The programme was initially reviewed 
by Heads of Service so they could consider when items could be scheduled, particularly 
against competing COVID-19 response and recovery work. As detailed above, 
consultation then took place with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee. The revised 
programme was received positively.     

2.3 There are two new key areas of work included in the programme for Members to note.  
Firstly, it is the responsibility of the Committee to oversee progress in delivering the 
Council’s COVID-19 recovery plan. This will be presented quarterly alongside the 
established Council Plan performance tracker. Secondly, the Committee is asked to 
oversee delivery of an action plan that will be established once the Local Government 
Association Corporate Peer Challenge report has been finalised.  

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 None. 

 

 

 

 

21



5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Council Plan 2020-24.  

Economic Development and Tourism Strategy. 

Communications Strategy. 

Housing Strategy. 

Safeguarding Policy. 

Customer Care Strategy. 

Complaints Policy.  

COVID-19 recovery plan 

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None.   

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 Possible use of the £1,000 budget to support any scrutiny reviews that may arise. 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 The Committee will consider these implications when undertaking reviews and in making 
its recommendations.  

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 The Committee will consider these implications when undertaking reviews and in making 
its recommendations. 

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services  
 01684 272002      graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
  
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21 

22

mailto:graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 

REGULAR ITEMS: 

• Executive Committee Forward Plan

• Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2020/21

Additions to 1 September 2020 

• 

Deletions from 1 September 2020 

• 

Committee Date: 13 October 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Motion – Support for Tech 
Talent Charter 

To consider the motion and make a 
recommendation to Council in 
December. 

Head of Corporate Services No – motion deferred by Council 
on 28 July 2020. 

Performance Report – 
Quarter 1 2020/21 

To review and scrutinise the 
performance management information 
and, where appropriate, to require 
response or action from the Executive 
Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020 to allow new tracker to be 
produced and KPIs to be reviewed 
where necessary.  

NB This may mean the recovery 
tracker (due to be approved at 
Executive Committee on 5 August 
2020) can also be included. 

Appendix 1

23



Committee Date: 13 October 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Review of Corporate 
Enforcement Policy 

To consider the revised Corporate 
Enforcement Policy and recommend 
to the Executive Committee that it be 
approved. 

Head of Corporate Services / 
Counter Fraud Manager 

Yes – moved from 14 April 2020 as 
meeting cancelled due to COVID-
19. 

Depot Services Working 
Group Update 

To receive the biannual update on the 
progress of the Depot Services Working 
Group. 

Head of Community Services  Remove as the Working Group 
has not met for a number of 
months so no progress has been 
made.  Next update scheduled for 
6 April 2021. 

Housing Strategy Monitoring 
Report 

To consider the progress made in 
respect of the outcomes identified in the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan.  

Head of Community Services Remove – Housing Strategy due 
for review. O&S Workshop to b 
arranged for January/February 
2021; draft revised strategy to be 
taken to O&S Committee on 21 
April 2021. 

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (18 September 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (15 September 2020). 

N/A No. 

24



Committee Date: 13 October 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (16 September 2020). 

N/A No. 

25



Committee Date: 24 November 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Economic Development 
and Tourism Strategy 
2017-21 

To consider the progress made 
against the delivery of the Economic 
Development and Tourism Strategy 
2017-21. 

Economic and Community 
Development Manager 

Yes – moved from 16 June 2020 
(meeting cancelled) to allow time 
for feedback from the business 
community and consider how 
COVID-19 impacts upon the 
strategy. 

Update on Battlefield 
Project Plan, 2021 Group 
and Independent Tourism 
Review 

To receive an overview of the project 
plan and the 2021 group and an 
update on the independent tourism 
review (as agreed at the O&S meeting 
on 10 March 2020).  

Economic and Community 
Development Manager 

Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020 in order to tie in with the 
Economic Development Strategy 
due to its overlap. 

Ubico Report 2019/20 To consider the Ubico performance 
report for 2019/20. 

Head of Community Services Yes – moved from 14 July 2020.  
The Ubico report needs to be 
revised significantly – 
performance monitoring resource 
at Ubico is limited and this will 
give time to review and revise the 
report for Committee. 

Workforce Development 
Strategy Review 

To consider progress made against 
delivery of the Workforce 
Development Strategy. 

Head of Corporate Services Yes – moved from 16 June 2020 
(meeting cancelled) due to impact 
of COVID-19. 

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (6 November 2020). 

N/A No. 

26



Committee Date: 24 November 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (17 November 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (21 October and 18 
November 2020). 

N/A No. 

  

27



Committee Date: 12 January 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Report – 
Quarter 2 2020/21 (including 
recovery plan tracker) 

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management information and, where 
appropriate, to require response or action 
from the Executive Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services. No.  

Private Rented Housing 
Sector Scheme 

To receive a report on progress of the 
Private Rented Housing Sector 
Scheme (as agreed at the O&S 
meeting on 10 March 2020). 

Head of Community Services Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020.  The pilot was due to end in 
October but the countywide 
partnership is considering 
extending this – much of the work 
has paused due to COVID-19. 

Parking Strategy Review To endorse the findings of the Parking 
Strategy Review and approve the draft 
strategy for public consultation. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management 

Yes – moved from 16 June 2020.  
Working Group to recommence in 
September following a seven 
month hiatus – revised timetable 
suggests 1 July 2021 
implementation rather than 1 April 
2021. 

Customer Care Strategy  To endorse the Customer Care 
Strategy and action plan for 2021/22. 

 

Head of Corporate Services  Yes – moved from 14 April 2020 
(meeting cancelled) due to impact 
of COVID-19. 

Communications Strategy 
2020-24 

To consider the progress made against 
the actions within the Communications 
Strategy during 2020/21 and to endorse 
the action plan for 2021/22. 

Corporate Services Manager No. 

28



Committee Date: 12 January 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Planning Committee 
Overturns 

To review and scrutinise Planning 
Committee overturns 2019/20 (to include 
comparisons with other local authorities; 
a summary page to set out the trends 
that Officers had identified; and a Call-in 
section to include a reason for the 
application going to Planning Committee 
e.g. Member call-in, objection from
Parish Council – (as agreed by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its
meeting on 23 July 2019).

Head of Development Services No. 

29



Committee Date: 9 February 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Annual Report on 
Economic Growth 

To receive an annual report on 
economic growth to include 
performance of the Growth Hub and 
businesses within the borough (as 
agreed at O&S on 11 February 2020). 

Economic and Community 
Development Manager. 

No – previously in pending items. 

Gloucestershire Health and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 2021/22 
Financial Contribution 

To conduct the annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
involvement in the Gloucestershire 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in order to authorise payment of the 
Council’s contribution to the running 
costs for the forthcoming year.  

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

30



 

Committee Date: 9 March 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Report – 
Quarter 3 2020/21 (including 
recovery plan tracker) 

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management information and, where 
appropriate, to require response or action 
from the Executive Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services No. 

Parking Strategy Review To review consultation responses and 
make a recommendation to the 
Executive Committee. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management 

Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020.  Working Group to 
recommence in September 
following a seven month hiatus – 
revised timetable suggests 1 July 
2021 implementation rather than 1 
April 2021. 

Community Services 
Improvement Plan 

To consider the progress made 
against the Community Services 
Improvement Plan. 

Head of Community Services  Yes – moved from 14 July 2020.  
Little activity has taken place over 
recent months due to COVID-19. 

 
  

31



Committee Date: 6 April 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Depot Services Working 
Group Update 

To receive the biannual update on the 
progress of the Depot Services Working 
Group. 

Head of Community Services No – however, this will be the first 
update to the Committee as a prior 
update has been removed from 
the meeting on 13 October. 

  The Working Group has not met 
for a number of months so no 
progress has been made. 

Housing Strategy Review 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the progress made in 
respect of the outcomes identified in the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan. To 
approve the revised Housing Strategy 
prior to consideration by Executive 
Committee/Council. 

Head of Community Services No. 

Customer Care Strategy To consider the progress made in 
relation to the actions contained within 
the Customer Care Strategy 2020/21 and 
to endorse the action plan for 2021/22. 

Corporate Services Manager No. – Update now scheduled for 12 
January 2021 so this item will not 
be needed until April 2022. 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Annual Report 
2020/21 

To approve the annual report as required 
by the Council’s Constitution to ensure 
that the activities of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are promoted, both 
internally and publicly, to reinforce 
transparency and accountability in the 
democratic process. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

32



 
 
 

PENDING ITEMS 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
Review 

To approve Terms of Reference and establish membership of the Working Group. 

To endorse Working Group report and recommend it to the Executive Committee/Council for 
adoption  

Review previously scheduled to commence in April 2020, postponed as not appropriate in current 
climate.  

Review of Complaints Policy Identified for review in the Corporate Policies and Strategies Report and agreed by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 4 September 2018 – Overview and Scrutiny Committee advised at 
its meeting on 10 September 2019 that this will be via workshop or Working Group. 

Presentation from Severn Trent Water Date to be agreed once work has finished (August 2020?) - To receive a presentation from Severn Trent 
Water on the works carried out to the Severn Ham as a result of the Scrutiny Review of Water Supply 
Outage – as agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 10 September 2019. 

LGA Peer Challenge Report Action Plan To monitor implementation of the action plan (currently awaiting peer challenge report). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



ITEMS FOR INCLUSION IN 2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME 

June 2021 – Corporate Policies and 
Strategies 

To consider the corporate polices and strategies and identify which will be reviewed by the Committee 
during 2020/21. 

Annual item but removed from 2020/21 work programme as unlikely to have capacity for additional 
reviews this year. 

July 2021 – Climate Change Strategy 
Annual Report 

To receive the annual report on the work of the Climate Change and Flood Risk Management Group.  

Annual report required 12 months after carbon audit and indicative action plan considered by Council. 

September 2021 – Development 
Services Improvement Plan 

To receive an update on the outcomes of the customer satisfaction survey on experience of planning 
application process and the pre-application planning advice service and, if relevant, an explanation on 
any outstanding actions 

Due to be taken to 16 June 2020 but delayed to allow time for the Technical Planning Manager to work 
with the team, including the new Head of Development Services, on survey results following decision for 
Business Transformation Manager to move to Gloucester City Council full-time. 

34



Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel 
17 July 2020 

Feedback Report 
 
 
The role of the Panel is to:  “maintain a regular check and balance on the performance of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner (PCC). The functions of the Panel are to be exercised with a view to supporting the 
effective exercise of the functions of the PCC. The Panel is under a duty to support, as well as challenge, 
the PCC.” 
 
At the July meeting the Panel considered a number of matters: 
 
1. Election of Chair 

 
Cllr Collin Hay was elected as Chair for 2020/21 
 

2. Election of Vice Chairperson 
 
Cllr Steve Robinson was elected Vice-Chair for 2020/21 

 
3. COVID-19: Lesson learned and policing “new normal” 

 
The response of the PCC and the Police to the pandemic was discussed. 
 
The PCC noted that he had ensured that the Chief Constable “had had the space needed” to get on 
with operational matters and confirmed that he had released an additional £1m of funding from 
reserves to ensure that funding restrictions did not impact the ability of the Police to respond 
effectively. 
 
The Chief Constable stated that, from the outset of the pandemic, the Police approach had been one of 
“education and engaging with the public, with enforcement as a last resort”. A bespoke command 
structure had been put in place early in the pandemic to ensure smooth operations. 
 
40/50 Police Officers had initially displayed symptoms of COVID-19 and had self-isolated, but this 
number had dropped significantly over time. Special Constables had been extensively used; this had 
been facilitated by a number being furloughed by their normal employer. 
 
Overall, crime dropped during the pandemic, with both burglary and shoplifting falling for obvious 
reasons, but domestic abuse incidents had risen slightly. The amount of county lines crimes had also 
fallen. 
 
The PCC acknowledged that the 101 system was still struggling with both the number and complexity 
of calls being in excess of that originally envisaged. There was still a need for better connectivity with 
other agencies relevant to the calls received. The performance of the system was under review. 
 
Central government has confirmed that the cost of PPE to the police will be reimbursed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35

Agenda Item 8



4. Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) – Chief Executive Report 
 
Richard Bradley, the CEO OPCC gave a detailed report. 
 
The need for a new court complex in Gloucestershire was discussed. This is not within the remit of the 
PCC, but he had been active in pursuing the topic with local Gloucestershire MPs as he feels that the 
current antiquated arrangements are not fit for purpose and is concerned that cases may have to be 
heard outside the county. The Panel resolved to write to the MPs requesting their support in 
maintaining a Gloucestershire-based court system. 
 
The Panel asked that thanks be passed on to all the Police staff and volunteers for their commitment 
and dedication to keeping residents safe during the pandemic. 
 
The Panel agreed to support the Black Lives Matter Statement agreed by Leadership Gloucestershire. 

 
5. O PCC - Draft Annual Report 

 
The draft annual report of the activities of the PCC was considered. The Panel noted that the current 
year report was an improvement on the previous year’s report.  
 
Amongst various mattes highlighted in the report, the Panel was particularly impressed by the scheme 
of parking buddies - cones the size of small children dressed as Police Officers - installed at some 
Gloucestershire schools to help ensure appropriate traffic management. 

 
6. OPCC Appointment of CEO 

 
The Panel supported the appointment of the acting OPCC CEO, Richard Bradley, to the permanent 
role. 
 
The next meeting of the Panel will be on 18 September 2020. 

36



Gloucestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 14 July 2020 
 
The meeting was held virtually – As usual, the Agenda and various reports can be viewed on  
the Gloucestershire County Council website:  
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=772&MId=9519&Ver=4 
 
Public Representations 
 
The meeting was started with two public representations:-  
 

1. Wanted to ask for a review of the number of COVID-19 deaths in the Alston and St. 
Marks Medium Super Output Area (MSOA). As of 31 May 2020, there were 32 
deaths in this area, the fourth highest in the UK in this period in one area. It was 
thought that it may be due to a large number of care homes in that area. A response 
was provided to confirm that regular contact had been made with the homes. A 
financial uplift was given to help with COVID-19 needs and increase domicile art 
provision to prevent unnecessary travel for family members. Training was given to all 
care providers in the area and delivery of PPE. The review will be allocated to a 
scrutiny committee to investigate, to prevent similar reoccurrences where possible. 
 

2. Professor from REACH discussed a letter regarding patient safety concerns with 
temporary service changes at Gloucester Royal Hospital and Cheltenham General 
Hospital.  A response was provided explaining they needed to deliver safe services 
and a written reply would be issued in response to REACH’S letter. All 13 emergency 
consultants endorse services as they are. Prior to admission for surgery, swab 
testing is done for COVID-19, and this needs to be negative prior to admission.   

 
COVID-19-19 Temporary Service Change 
 
Phase 1 - initial response  
 
Extensive re-prioritisation to manage the COVID-19 requirements e.g. using the private 
hospitals, whole system pulling together across all organisations in NHS and Social Care. 
 
Phase 2 - COVID-19 still with us but infection rates have changed. Looking at using more 
virtual methods to provide some care. Plans to be ready to respond in autumn should 
another COVID-19 peak emerge alongside winter flu issues. 
 
It was reinforced that this was a temporary change and not the outcome of Fit For The 
Future Work. It was agreed that there is potential for some confusion, as some of the 
temporary changes are similar to those mentioned in Fit For The Future. The outcome of Fit 
For The Future, will continue in September. The impact of the pandemic has given the 
opportunity to see what works and what doesn’t. It has helped inform Fit For The Future 
which is still a consultation. Current working practices are to continue for another 3 months. 
It is a clinically lead temporary change to provide care safely. 
 
There wasn’t space at Cheltenham General Hospital to have two entries, one for COVID-19 
and one for non COVID-19 related illness, or the staff available. Hence the two entries were 
only able to be done at Gloucester Royal Hospital. 
 
The winter planning is well underway. The public health management plan is looking at 
planning for a second peak, full details will be available in September. Looking at driving the 
flu vaccination, for an increased group, due to fears of the flu coinciding with a second peak. 
 
 

37

Agenda Item 9

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=772&MId=9519&Ver=4


Fit For The Future 
 
Progressing slowly due to the pandemic. September-December they are hoping to launch 
the public consultation. There is a virtual consultation of the Citizens Jury set up for 
November. All the work will be collated and considered with an expected business case in 
Jan/Feb. And implementation in March/April, as a rough timescale.  
 But accept this may be delayed if we have a second peak. 
 
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report  
 
The key issues have been widely impacted by COVID-19. Nearly all activities and 
performances have been affected. 
Patients behaviours have changed dramatically, resulting in new demand patterns during 
lockdown. Starting to return to normal activity now. Challenges still remain due to 
configuration, infection control measures, and staffing. These all contributed to a decline in 
key performances. 
 
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group  - Clinical Chair/Accountability Report 
 
This report mainly covers three areas. 
 A - It provides a general NHS Commissioner update incorporating National Consultation. 
B - Update focusing on Primary Medical Care. 
C - Provides Trusts updates from Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust 
and Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS foundation Trust. 
 
 

38



1 of 5 
 

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 

(GEGSC) 

Summary of Virtual Meeting Held on 

Thursday 2nd July 2020 

 
 
1. Verbal Update on the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 

Committee (GEGJC) Meeting 

 

Cllr Patrick Molyneux (Chair of GEGJC) provided the following update on 
the GEGJC virtual meeting held on Wednesday the 3rd June 2020: 

 

- There have been discussions about how both the GEGJC and GEGSC 

could work together to help the COVID recovery plan for 
Gloucestershire.   

 

- Committee governance has been extended by eighteen months 

from September 2020 to ensure the committee can legally proceed 

with its work. 
 

- There were two approved funding bids from the Strategic Economic 

Growth Development Fund (SEDF).  One to establish the 

Gloucestershire City/Region Board and the other from the multi 
modal transport group.  He said there is lots of information 

available regarding these two bids online. 

 

- The work of the Strategic Planning Manager was approved to 
continue and would be brought in-house. 

 

- There was also a GFIRST LEP update – more on this later in this 

meeting. 

 
- The key item in the meeting was the COVID 19 response.  This is 

currently very fluid with a lot of things out of Gloucestershire’s 

hands. 

 
- The GEGJC would be taking a co-ordinating role in the county 

council’s response to COVID – working with the LEP, District and 

Borough partners.  The aim is to have a united approach across the 

County and to try to ensure there are no gaps in the response.  
 

- There will be an additional meeting of the GEGJC later on in July 

2020 to look at how the COVID recovery plan is progressing. 

 

- COVID 19 has rapidly changed the way people work and how the 
economy looks. 

39

Agenda Item 10



2 of 5 
 

2. GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Verbal Update 

 

Dev Chakraborty (LEP Deputy Chief Executive) provided an update on the 
work of the GFirst LEP in the following areas: 

 

a. Growth Deal Projects 

b. County’s Inward Investment Project 
c. A New Funding Pot from Government 

 

 

a. Growth Deal Projects 
 

Dev said growth deal projects include: 

 

o West Cheltenham Transport Scheme 
o West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling Schemes 

o Airport Schemes 

o Gloucestershire Railway Station 

 

The LEP has been making sure that these projects continue - working on 
due diligence and getting funding agreements signed off. 
a. County’s Inward Investment Project 

 
b. County’s Inward Investment Project 

 

Dev explained that this is where the LEP attempts to attract foreign 

owned companies into the county.  However, one of the results of COVID 
was that all major national and international events were cancelled.  So, 

for the time being, that project has come to a halt. 

 

The team responsible for this project has been redeployed onto COVID 19 

and recovery planning.  The majority of this team have been making calls 
to the largest companies in the county to find out how COVID 19 has 

affected their business.  This information has been fed into the LEP’s own 

recovery planning and their daily calls to central Government. 

 
 

c. County’s Inward Investment Project 

 

Dev stated that it is sensible to have a live project pipeline (an 
“Investment Portfolio”) just in case central Government provide a new 

funding source.   

 

He went on to explain that the LEP were given 6 days notice by the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government who asked what 

project were available that satisfied strict criteria. 

 

 

40



3 of 5 
 

They projects had to be: 

 

- Shovel Ready 
- Able to be Completed by December 2021  

- Recovery and Job Creation Theme focused 

- And have “Green Credentials” 

 
Fifteen projects were submitted from the county to central Government 

with a projected cost totalling £52 million. The projects were from every 

part of the county.  

 
Dev said that central Government this week announced £900 million 

would be available for the whole of England.  He explained that 

Gloucestershire represents about 1% of the economic output and 1% of 

the population for the whole of England.  So, it’s anticipated that 
Gloucestershire is likely to get a figure of about £9 million. 

 

The most important projects that satisfied the above criteria and were put 

on that list were: 

 
- King Square in Gloucester 

- Tewkesbury Garden Town 

- Cheltenham to Gloucester cycle highway 

- Bishop's Cleave to Cheltenham cycle highway 
 

He emphasised that the LEP’s Local Industrial Strategy’s priorities of 

Cyber, Environment and Agri-tech remain.  There is also a need to keep 

young people in the county. 
 

Dev said that he hopes to know the actual figure that Gloucestershire will 

receive from government next week. 

 

Full business cases will be submitted to Government by mid-July. 
 

 

d. General Information 

 
Dev said that some of the inward investment projects are confidential but 

details would be made available to the GEGSC outside of this meeting. 

 

The LEP’s recovery plan proposes a “Think Gloucestershire” campaign that 
would encompass: 

 

- “Staycations” to support the visitor economy and the tourism sector 

- Supporting shopping locally as opposed to using online services such 
as Amazon 

- Supporting local procurement for all sectors including the public sector 

41



4 of 5 
 

There will be at least seven recovery plans for the county so all the 

districts and the boroughs are producing their own place-based recovery 

plan.  The LEP will produce an economic sector based business plan  
 

There are 76,300 people in the county who are being furloughed. 

 

 

3. COVID-19 Response – Planning for Gloucestershire’s Economic 

Recovery 

 
Colin Chick (Director of Economy, Community & Infrastructure) explained 

that: 

 

- The role is leadership, co-ordination and qualitative analysis.  The aim 

is to ensure the county is moving in the “correct direction”. 
 

- There was a need to make sure that the skills training that's going to 

be offered aligns with the LEP and also enables people to be re-skilled 

so they could enter a different career. 
 

- Research shows that the people who are going to be most affected by 

COVID are the 17-24 year olds – those without work experience. 

 
- Those with a degree will find it difficult to obtain work.  However, it's 

even worse for those that haven't attained that level of qualification.  

There is therefore a need to manage this problem and help and assist.  

In summary, it's a broad-based coordination leadership, evidence-
gathering role - supporting and working with the LEP and districts. 

 

- Although everyone wants to be seen to do something straight away, 

we don't know the size of the problem or even know where the 

problem currently is because all the government grants, the furlough 
scheme and other forms of assistance are potentially covering up a 

“multitude of sins”.   

 

- There are probably companies that under normal circumstances and 
without COVID and associated assistance would have dissolved by 

now.  For that reason, Colin said we should not get into localised 

business support because if we do we may end up supporting 

businesses that may easily fail.  
 

- As a consequence of the above, we need to go for a sector based 

approach - looking at the weaknesses in the sectors and see how these 

sectors can be strengthened and supported in future. We must take a 

sector and/or geographical based approach. 
 

42



5 of 5 
 

Cllr Simon Pickering (responsible for Strategic Infrastructure) then added 

that: 

 
- Before COVID 19 struck in March 2020 there had been good news from 

the Government with the approval of the: 

 

o A417 missing link 
o M5 Junction 10 

o M5 Junction 9 

 

- Unfortunately, the onset of COVID 19 had a significant impact on all of 
the major infrastructure schemes - not only those specified above.  

 

- Some of the schemes have been delayed: 

 
o The public inquiry for the Gloucester Southwest bypass has been  

delayed  

o The A417 missing link has also been delayed by between eight 

and twelve months  

 
- However, M5 Junction 10 is being progressed to hopefully enable the 

drawdown of £220 million pounds by late summer/early autumn. 

 

- Also, the business case for M5 Junction 9 is being worked on with the 
aim of submitting it to the Department for Transport next year. 

 

- Construction has already started on phases 1 and 2 of the West 

Cheltenham transport improvement scheme at the Arle Court 

roundabout  
 

- The County Council are doing their best to progress all the planned 

schemes. 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Cllr John Murphy – July 2020 

43



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting: 1 September 2020 

Subject: Complaints Report 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Customer Focus 

Number of Appendices: Two 

 

Executive Summary: 

The current complaints framework was introduced in April 2016. The framework included the 
approval of a new policy and a new reporting and monitoring system to help ensure complaints 
are effectively managed. The framework is monitored by a designated officer within the 
Corporate Services team and an annual review of complaints received is undertaken by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

This report provides a summary of complaints received during 2019/20 and also includes the 
annual letter received from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) on 
complaints it has decided on.  

Recommendation: 

Members are asked to CONSIDER the annual update to provide assurance that 
complaints are managed effectively and determine whether any further action is 
required. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

To ensure there is effective complaints monitoring and there is evidence of learning to improve 
service delivery and customer satisfaction.   

 

Resource Implications: 

There is a manpower resource to investigate any complaints that are received. Several 
complaints during the latter part of quarter 4 were impacted by the Council’s response to 
COVID-19. 

Legal Implications: 

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman has power to investigate complaints of 
maladministration against the Council (subject to certain exceptions) and may make 
recommendations as to how such complaints may be resolved.  Where considered 
appropriate, the Ombudsman has the power to issue a formal report on any particular case for 
consideration by the Council.  Although not legally bound to accept any recommendations from 
the Ombudsman, it is important that the Council takes careful note of them and learns from 
any recommendations that they make. 

44

Agenda Item 11



Risk Management Implications: 

If complaints are not handled in accordance with the approved framework, and the Council 
does not learn from the complaints received, there is a potential reputational risk to the 
Council.  

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Customer complaints, including those made to the Ombudsman, are reported to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on an annual basis.  A quarterly analysis is also presented at Corporate 
Management Team.  

Environmental Implications:  

None directly. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The current complaints framework was introduced in April 2016. The framework included 
the approval of a new policy and a new reporting and monitoring system to help ensure 
complaints are effectively managed. The framework is monitored by a designated officer 
within the Corporate Services team, and an annual summary is reported to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  

A formal complaint is defined as ‘an expression of dissatisfaction that requires a response 
about the standards of service, actions or lack of action, by the Council or its staff’.  

1.2 Part of the improvements made with the new system included signposting on how to make 
a complaint and clearly differentiating between a service type complaint/request and a 
formal complaint. The enhanced reporting and monitoring system has helped ensure that 
complaints are handled to the same standard and their progress can be closely monitored 
so that responses are made in a timely manner. Complaints may be reported onwards to 
the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman by the complainant once the 
complaint has been dealt with through the Council’s complaints framework.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



2.0 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED APRIL 2019 TO MARCH 2020 

2.1 200 formal complaints were received within the year, of which, 178 relate to Council 
services. 164 of these were handled under the formal complaints procedure and 14 were 
deemed service-level complaints e.g. noise complaints handled through a separate 
process.  

Of these:  

 
 

 

2.2 The second stage of the Council’s formal complaint process is where the complainant is 
not happy with the original response and the complaint is assigned to an independent 
head of service for investigation. The Council’s stage two complaints process was 
suspended in the latter quarter of 2019/20 to enable Heads of Service to be redeployed on 
COVID-19 response activities. As a result, five stage two complaints are currently pending 
decision at the time of writing this report. All complainants were notified of the suspension, 
accepted the reasons and informed that stage two investigations will commence with 
effect from 1 September 2020.  During 2019/20, only 15 stage two complaints were 
received. Of these;   

                            

2.3 A breakdown of the complaints by service area, nature of complaint and remedy can be 
found in Appendix 1. This also includes a summary of lessons learnt. A recent internal 
audit of the complaints framework has recommended there should be some form of 
independent follow-up to ensure lessons learned are actually deployed. The Corporate 
team will look at how to best implement this. The audit did conclude a satisfactory level of 
control in general, and that the complaint outcome was fairly stated.  

 

46



2.4 

 

From the breakdown by service area, over half (89) of complaints received relate to the 
Council’s waste and recycling service. Waste collection is a high-profile service with more 
than 4.2million collections carried out over the year. The number of complaints in 
proportion to the number of collections is therefore very small and are an inherent feature 
given the type of service provided. The bulk of the other complaints are related to other 
high profile customer facing services such as planning and Revenues and Benefits.  

3.0 COMPLAINTS ANALYSIS FOR PREVIOUS PERIODS  

3.1 Previous number of complaints reported to the Committee are detailed below: 

 

Please note: 2019/2020 - at the time of writing this report, no stage two complaints were 
justified but five were pending a response.   

3.2 The complaints framework has now been in place for four years. A review was due to take 
place in the latter part of 2019/20 but was delayed as a result of resources being used to 
respond to COVID-19. The timescale has been revised and a review will now take place in 
early 2021.  

4.0 BENCHMARKING OUR COMPLAINTS WITH OTHERS 

4.1 On a quarterly basis, outturn figures are input through LG Inform. LG Inform is a dedicated 
database provided by the Local Government Association (LGA) which includes a 
benchmarking tool. One of the indicators reported upon is the number of complaints per 
10,000 population. Over 50 Councils report upon this indicator. In March 2020, the LGA 
deferred its benchmarking exercise to allow Councils to focus their resources on tackling 
the COVID-19 pandemic. Therefore, a full year comparison for 2019/20 is not available 
and quarter two/quarter three 2019/20 are pre-release figures and can be subject to 
change by LGA.   The graph below shows the Council’s trend compared to the average for 
other local authorities which have reported in 2019/20.  

 

 

111 

157 

192 
200 

102 

143 

180 
171 

77 

106 
96 

63 

11 
19 

10 15 
4 8 2 0 

0

50

100

150

200

250

2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

Total complaints Response within target time Complaints upheld

Number of Stage two Stage two complaints Justified

47



 

5.0 COMPLIMENTS 

5.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A compliments log is maintained within Customer Services. During 2019/20, 35 
compliments were received:  

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20

Number of formal complaints receievd per 10,000 population 

Tewkesbury number of formal complaints received per 10,000 population

Average for all English district local authorities number of formal complaints
received per 10,000 population

Community 
Development, 10 

Customer Services, 
7 

Community 
Services, 4 

Revenue & 
Benefits, 3 

Corporate Services 
& HR, 3 

Property, 2 

ICT, 2 

Tourist Information 
Centre, 1 

Ubico, 1 
[CATEGORY NAME], 

[VALUE] 
Growth Hub, 1 

48



5.2 The total number of compliments received since 2016/ 2017 are as follows: 

 

5.3 A summary of the compliments receievd in 2019/20 are: 

 Helping provide support to local communities 

 Responding back to customers quickly and efficiently 

 Helping assist with completing forms 

 The Council’s emergency response to flooding in February 2020. 

 Onlines forms- being easy to access and use on the Council’s website. 

 Employees showing compassion, being helpful and kind  

6.0 OMBUDSMAN COMPLAINTS (LGSCO) 

6.1 The LGSCO deals with complaints against all local government authorities in England 
(except Parish and Town Councils) and certain other bodies. Each year the LGSCO 
publishes an “Annual Review Letter” for every authority which details the number of 
complaints and enquiries received and the decisions made.  This letter is attached to this 
report at Appendix 2.  It is also published on the LGSCO website.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28 
32 31 

35 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2016/ 2017 2017/ 2018 2018/ 2019 2019/2020

Number of compliments received 

49

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance/tewkesbury-borough-council/statistics


6.2 During 2019/20, the LGSCO decided 11 complaints relating to Tewkesbury Borough 
Council.  They are as follows: -  

Number of 
complaints 

Department Decision  

1 Benefits and Council Tax Closed after initial enquiries 

2 Highways and Transport 

(Parking) 

Closed after initial enquires 

Referred back for local resolution 

1 Housing Referred back for local resolution 

1 Environmental Services and 
Public Protection and Regulation 

Upheld 

6 Planning and Development 

 

Upheld 

Not upheld 

Referred back for local resolution 

Closed after initial enquiries 

Closed after initial enquiries 

Closed after initial enquiries 

The chart below shows the number of complaints referred to the LGSCO compared to 
previous years:  

 

7.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 None 

8.0 CONSULTATION  

8.1 None 

9.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

9.1 Corporate Complaints Policy  

[CATEGORY 
NAME] 
[VALUE] 

[CATEGORY 
NAME] 

 [VALUE] 

[CATEGORY 
NAME] 

 [VALUE] 

[CATEGORY 
NAME] 

 [VALUE] 

50



10.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

10.1  Local Government Act 1974 

11.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

11.1 Officer time to monitor and investigate complaints received. 

12.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

12.1 None 

13.0 IMPACT UPON (Value for money/ Equalities/ E-Government/ Human Rights/ Health 
and Safety) 

13.1 Due regard is paid to the relevant policies and schemes during the investigation and 
resolution of complaints. Outcomes arising from improvement actions as a result of a 
complaints investigation may be beneficial in these areas. 

14.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

14.1 None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: None 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services        
 01684 272002          Graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1- Complaints breakdown 
 Appendix 2 – Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 2019/20 

Annual Review Letter  

51

mailto:Graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

Formal complaints received April 2019 to March 2020 

1) Breakdown by service (2018/19 figures in brackets) 

 

*Figure includes not Tewkesbury Borough Complaints (22) and service level complaints (14) 

 

Service area 
Total 
complaints 

Within 
target 

Outside 
target 

Awaiting 
response 

Justified 
Partially 
justified 

Not 
justified 

Complaint 
appeals 
(stage two) 

Stage two 
outcome 

Waste and 
recycling  

89 (99) 86 (95) 3 (4) 0 54 (70) 25 (16) 10 (13) 2 (2) 

1- partially 
justified  
1- pending 
response 

Grounds 
Maintenance  
 

 11 (28) 9 (28) 2 (0) 0 2 (22) 5 (3) 4 (3) 0 (1) - 

Revenues & 
Benefits  
 

22 (10) 16 (10) 6 (0) 0 2 (0) 13 (5) 7 (5) 6 (0) 

2- not 
justified 
2- partially 
justified 
2- pending 
response 

Planning  23 (18) 10 (14) 11 (4) 2 2 (0) 10 (7) 9 (9) 6 (6) 

3- Not 
justified 
1-partially 
justified  
2- pending 
response 

Environmental 
Health  
 

6 (4) 4 (3) 2 (1) 0 1 (1) 3 (1) 2 (2) 0 (0) - 

Housing  6 (10) 5 (8) 1 (2) 0 0 (1) 3 (4) 3 (5) 0 (1) - 

Property  
 

2 (3) 2 (2) 0 (1) 0 0 (1) 0 (1) 2 (1) 0 (0) - 

Customer 
Services  
 

2 (1) 0 (1) 2 (0) 0 2 (0) 0 (1) 0 (0) 0 (0) - 

Parking 
 

2 (1) 2 (1) 0 (0) 0 0 (1) 0 (0) 2 (0) 1 (0) 
1-Partially 
justified 

Democratic 
Services 
 

1 (1) 1 (1) 0 (0) 0 0 (0) 0 (0) 1 (1) 0 (0) - 

ICT 
 

0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) - 

One Legal 
 

0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) - 

Corporate 
Services  
 

0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) - 

Economic and 
community 
development 
 

0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) - 

Service level 
complaints 
logged as 
formal 
complaint 

14 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 

Not 
Tewkesbury 
Borough 
Council 

22 (17) 22 (17) 0 (0) 0 0 0 0 0 - 

Totals 
 200 * (192) 

171 
(180) 

27 (12) 2 63 (96) 59 (38) 40 (39) 15 (10)   

52



2) Nature of complaint  

 

3) Stage one by remedy  

 

N.B- 2019/20 Financial compensation equals £24- refunds for repeated missed garden waste collections. 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Delay in responding to your enquiry or request

Failure to provide a service

The standard of our service

Your treatment by or attitude of a member of staff

Our failure to follow proper procedure

Other

Not Tewkesbury Borough Council

Service level complaint- handled through separate…

Delay in
responding to
your enquiry
or request

Failure to
provide a
service

The standard
of our service

Your
treatment by
or attitude of
a member of

staff

Our failure to
follow proper

procedure
Other

Not
Tewkesbury

Borough
Council

Service level
complaint-
handled
through
separate

process e.g.
noise

complaints

2016/17 4 35 41 12 11 3 5 0

2017/18 6 63 50 14 8 4 12 0

2018/19 9 96 39 7 18 6 17 0

2019/20 13 67 50 20 14 0 22 14

Nature of complaint 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Apology/ explanation provided

Financial compensation

Agreed solution with customer

Review of practice

Other

Not specified

Withdrawn

Awaiting response

Service level complaint

Not Tewkesbury Borough Council

Apology/
explanation

provided

Financial
compensation

Agreed
solution with

customer

Review of
practice

Other Not specified Withdrawn
Awaiting
response

Service level
complaint

Not
Tewkesbury

Borough
Council

2016/17 36 1 12 22 7 1 0 0 0 5

2017/18 126 1 5 1 5 7 0 0 0 12

2018/19 151 7 7 1 5 2 2 0 0 17

2019/20 133 2 5 0 0 22 0 2 14 22

Stage one remedy 

53



 

4) Stage two by remedy 

 

N.B- 2019/20 Financial compensation resolution offered to two complainants equating to £400 relating to 

valuation banding. Both complainants have gone to ombudsman to seek resolution- awaiting decision from the 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman.  

5) Lessons learnt 

The lessons learned for complaints received this year, included:  

 Staff instruction and training 

 Review and improve processes 

 Supervisors monitoring repeated missed bins 

 Improve communication with customers 

 

  

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

Apology/ explanation provided

Agreed solution with customer

Financial compensation

Other

Not specified

Pending response

Apology/
explanation

provided

Agreed solution
with customer

Financial
compensation

Other Not specified
Pending
response

2016/17 6 1 0 2 2 0

2017/18 16 1 0 2 0 0

2018/19 10 0 0 0 0 0

2019/20 8 0 2 0 0 5

Stage two by remedy 

54



22 July 2020 

By email 

Mr Dawson 
Chief Executive 
Tewkesbury Borough Council 

Dear Mr Dawson  

Annual Review letter 2020 

I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending     

31 March 2020. Given the exceptional pressures under which local authorities have been 

working over recent months, I thought carefully about whether it was still appropriate to send 

you this annual update. However, now, more than ever, I believe that it is essential that the 

public experience of local services is at the heart of our thinking. So, I hope that this 

feedback, which provides unique insight into the lived experience of your Council’s services, 

will be useful as you continue to deal with the current situation and plan for the future. 

Complaint statistics 

This year, we continue to place our focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be 

learned from them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and 

have made several changes over recent years to improve the data we capture and report. 

We focus our statistics on these three key areas: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an 

authority’s actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated. A 

focus on how often things go wrong, rather than simple volumes of complaints provides a 

clearer indicator of performance. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things 

right when faults have caused injustice. Our recommendations try to put people back in the 

position they were before the fault and we monitor authorities to ensure they comply with our 

recommendations. Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a 

compliance rate below 100% should scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply 

and identify any learning. 

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority - We want to encourage the early 

resolution of complaints and to credit authorities that have a positive and open approach to 

Appendix 2

55



resolving complaints. We recognise cases where an authority has taken steps to put things 

right before the complaint came to us. The authority upheld the complaint and we agreed  

with how it offered to put things right.

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of 

authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, 

District Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

This data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a 

copy of this letter on 29 July 2020, and our Review of Local Government Complaints. For 

further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website. 

Resources to help you get it right 

There are a range of resources available that can support you to place the learning from 

complaints, about your authority and others, at the heart of your system of corporate 

governance. Your council’s performance launched last year and puts our data and 

information about councils in one place. Again, the emphasis is on learning, not numbers. 

You can find the decisions we have made, public reports we have issued, and the service 

improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as 

previous annual review letters.  

I would encourage you to share the tool with colleagues and elected members; the 

information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems 

and is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions. 

Earlier this year, we held our link officer seminars in London, Bristol, Leeds and Birmingham. 

Attended by 178 delegates from 143 local authorities, we focused on maximising the impact 

of complaints, making sure the right person is involved with complaints at the right time, and 

how to overcome common challenges.  

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities 

and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. During the year, 

we delivered 118 courses, training more than 1,400 people. This is 47 more courses than we 

delivered last year and included more training to adult social care providers than ever before. 

To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Yours sincerely, 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Appendix 2

56

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Tewkesbury Borough Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/20 

Complaints upheld 

67% of complaints we
investigated were upheld. 

This compares to an average of 
45% in similar authorities. 

2
upheld decisions 

Statistics are based on a total of 3
detailed investigations for the 

period between 1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2020 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

In 100% of cases we were 
satisfied the authority had 
successfully implemented our 
recommendations. 

This compares to an average of 
99% in similar authorities. 

Statistics are based on a total of 1 
compliance outcome for the period 
between 1 April 2019 to 31 March 

2020 

• Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a compliance rate below 100% should
scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply and identify any learning.

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority 

In 33% of upheld cases we 
found the authority had provided 
a satisfactory remedy before the 
complaint reached the 
Ombudsman. 

This compares to an average of 
20% in similar authorities. 

1  
satisfactory remedy decision

Statistics are based on a total of 4 
detailed investigations for the 

period between 1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2020 

67%

100% 

33% 

Appendix 2

57



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

  

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny  

Date of Meeting: 1 September 2020  

Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Organisational Development 

Number of Appendices: One  

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to assure that the Council’s work is 
transparent, that the Council is held accountable for its decision-making, and that the needs of 
the community are considered. Reporting the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
through an annual report provides an opportunity for both the Council and the public to view 
the work of the Committee. It is also a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that the 
Committee reports annually to Council.  

Recommendation: 

To APPROVE the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20.  

Reasons for Recommendation: 

It is important to ensure that the activities of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
promoted both internally and publicly to reinforce transparency and accountability in the 
democratic process. It is also a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee reports annually to Council. 

 

Resource Implications:  

None. 

Legal Implications:  

None. 

Risk Management Implications:  

None. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Annual review of the work of the Committee provides transparency and accountability and 
helps the Overview and Scrutiny Committee prepare its work programme. 

 
 

58

Agenda Item 12



 

 

 

Environmental Implications:  

None. 

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny function must deliver the work required of it as set out in the 
Council’s Constitution. The Committee has a formal work programme for the year and it 
ensures the volume of work does not compromise the depth of examination required, 
does not duplicate the work of other Committees and adds value. 

2.0 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 

2.1 Not only is it a requirement of the Council’s Constitution to report the activities of the 
Committee on an annual basis but it is good practice. Over the past year, the Committee 
has once again been at the heart of the Council’s decision-making process and acted as 
a critical friend to the Executive Committee in helping shape and inform the Council’s 
decision making. This year’s annual report includes a brief summary of the role and 
responsibilities of Overview and Scrutiny, the work undertaken over the past year and 
the various outcomes.  In summary, the work has been undertaken through a 
combination of the following: 

 Progress reports from officers on the delivery of key strategies and policies. For 
example, the Committee receives update reports on key strategies such as 
Economic Development and Tourism Strategy, Housing Strategy, 
Communications Strategy etc.  

 Quarterly performance management reporting – The Committee receives a 
quarterly performance tracker report on the progress of delivering Council Plan 
actions, Key Performance Indicators and financial outturn performance. Further 
scrutiny led to individual reports being received on planning performance and the 
trade waste service, looking at maximising the commercial opportunity of the 
service.  

 Working groups to review specific areas of interest - during the year, working 
groups were set up to review the Parking Strategy and Depot Services , as well 
as the final report from the Grounds Maintenance Working Group, which was 
formed to specifically tackle grass cutting concerns throughout the borough.  

 Presentations from officers and external organisations - presentations were 
received during the year from organisations such as Citizens’ Advice Bureau, 
Gfirst Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and Growth Hub.  

 A special meeting was held in August to look at the motion to declare a climate 
change emergency.  

 Other general scrutiny reviews- the Committee reviewed multiple reports which 
included from updates on the Community Services and Development Services 
improvement plans and Tewkesbury Borough News review. 

2.2 Following approval of the annual report, it will be presented by the Chair of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at Council on 29 September 2020. This fulfils the reporting 
requirement within the Council’s Constitution. The 2019/20 annual report can be found at 
Appendix 1. 

59



 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None. 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1  None. 

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 None. 

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

7.1  None.   

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

8.1 None 

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

9.1 None 

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

10.1 None 

11.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

11.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services  
 01684 272002 graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendix:     Appendix 1 – Annual Overview and Scrutiny Committee Report 2019/20 

60

mailto:graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Overview and Scrutiny

Committee’s

annual report

August 2020

2019-20

Appendix 1

61



Message from the Chair
of Overview and

Scrutiny Committee,
Councillor 

Kevin Cromwell

I am pleased to present the 2019-20 Annual Report of
Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. At the beginning of the year, there was a
significant change to the membership of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee as newly-elected members joined those
that had served in previous years. This has been my first
year as chair - with Councillor John Murphy as vice chair -
and we are grateful to be supported by a group of very able
and committed councillors.

Over the past year, the committee has once again been at
the heart of the council’s decision-making process and
acted as a critical friend to the Executive Committee in
helping shape and inform the council’s decision making.
This report includes a brief summary of the role and
responsibilities of Overview and Scrutiny, the work
undertaken over the past year and the various outcomes. 

Our responsibility to scrutinise the performance of Council
Plan actions continues, and we will have a further two
priorities – ‘garden communities’ and ‘sustainable
environment’ – to monitor moving forward, as the council’s
new Council Plan 2020 to 2024 was adopted earlier this
year.   

It remains important that the committee continues to build
its knowledge and understanding of how our partners help
to deliver our Council Plan priorities. To facilitate this, the
committee has received some really informative
presentations from key bodies such as the Citizens Advice
Bureau, Gfirst Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and the
Growth Hub.

A key piece of work for the committee last year followed a
motion to Council to declare a climate change emergency.
The committee was asked to hold a special meeting to
consider the proposal and it made a number of key
recommendations. As a result, in October, Council joined
other local authorities across the country in declaring a
climate change emergency. Scrutiny will really be at the
heart of this work, as I am chair of the working group that
will oversee its delivery, and the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee will play an instrumental role in monitoring its
action plan. 

The committee has also continued to scrutinise and monitor
the progress of important activities such as Ubico’s

performance and enviro-crimes, as well as the delivery of key
strategies such as the Housing Strategy and the Economic
Development and Tourism Strategy.

In March, the council took part in a Local Government
Association Peer Challenge. Myself and Cllr John Murphy
supported this process through an interview, where we had the
opportunity to explain the important role that our committee
plays in the structure of the council. I am pleased to report that
the peer team reported positively on the impact of our
committee, and we now look forward to monitoring the
recommendations and actions that are identified from the peer
challenge team’s final report. 

Like organisations across the world, the biggest test the council
has seen for many years has been responding to the national
Covid-19 pandemic. I am extremely proud of our officers and
councillors, who continue to go above and beyond to support
our communities throughout this difficult period. The pandemic
significantly changed how the council operates on a day-to-day
basis, as the country went into lockdown, the council offices
closed and all work was carried out remotely.

Indeed, the committee held its first-ever virtual meeting, thanks
to the use of improved technology, which was a great success
and it is now likely to be the way that we hold our committee
meetings for the remainder of the municipal year. 

There are clearly some great opportunities for the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to support the council through its future
challenges as it emerges from the Covid-19 pandemic. With this
in mind, our 2020/21 workplan is currently being reviewed. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of the
committee members and council officers for their support and
hard work facilitating the scrutiny process. I am sure that the
same dedication will be shown to scrutinise the work of the
council and external partners during the year ahead. 

Best wishes
Councillor Kevin Cromwell

Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 2020

“

62



Overview and scrutiny Tewkesbury Borough Council

contents
The role of overview and scrutiny 1

The year in numbers 1

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2

Scrutiny reviews of policy and strategy 3

Presentations made to overview and scrutiny 4

Overview and scrutiny working groups 5

Special meeting 6

Other general areas for review 7

Looking forward to 2020-21 12

Appendix A 

How to select a potential scrutiny review 13

Appendix B

Draft workplan 14

Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 202063



1

The role of overview and scrutiny

The role of overview and scrutiny is an important one
in the council’s governance structure - it provides
challenge and drives improvement and is often
referred to as the “critical friend” of the council. The
committee is not afraid to hold a magnifying glass
over any areas of concern. 

Formal work programme

Tewkesbury Borough Council has a single
overarching Overview and Scrutiny Committee that
examines all areas of the council's business.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a number
of roles within the council. These include:

• Holding the Executive Committee to account by 
thoroughly scrutinising their decisions to ensure 
that the council continues to provide the best 
services possible for Tewkesbury Borough 
residents. As part of this role, the committee has 
the power to ‘call-in' decisions made by the 
Executive Committee and request that they 
consider them again, taking into account the 
issues raised by the committee.

• Supporting the Executive Committee by reviewing
council policies and strategies, making 
recommendations where appropriate.

• Overviews of work areas or topics of interest to 
the committee and members of the council – 
including feedback from the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Committee, the
Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel and the 
Gloucestershire County Council Health and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

• Council Plan performance and financial 
monitoring, to ensure the council services are 
sustainable and to the highest possible standard.

• Commissioning reviews of services/topics that 
impact on the council or on the lives of 
Tewkesbury Borough residents.

• Pre-scrutiny of items prior to their consideration 
by the Executive Committee.

• Complaints – on an annual basis a report is 
received summarising customer complaints and 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
complaints made in the year. This helps to 
identify trends and potential opportunities to 
learn from the complaints made.

• Setting up task and finish groups to focus on 
specific reviews and recommend ways to 
improve existing practices within the council. A 
flow chart on how to consider potential scrutiny 
reviews can be found at Appendix A.

The year in numbers

Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 2020

Tewkesbury Borough Council

MEMBERS
on the committee

15

11 
COMMITTEES
held - plus one special 
committee

 

3 WORKING
GROUPS held
11 meetings

AGENDA ITEMS
considered

54

HOURS
spent
scrutinising

over 62

PERFORMANCE
related questions
raised

60

further ACTIONS
and QUESTIONS
raised

199

DECISIONS
called-in for
reconsideration

0

?

64



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 20202

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019-2020

Councillor Craig CarterCouncillor Graham Bocking

Councillor Heather McLain Councillor Helen Munro

Councillor Jill Smith

Councillor John Murphy

Vice Chair

Councillor Kevin Cromwell

Chair

Councillor Mark Williams

Councillor Paul McLain

Councillor Pauline Godwin

Councillor Philip Surman

Councillor Philip Workman

Councillor Richard Smith Councillor Sara Stevens

Councillor Scott Thomson

Photographs courtesy of Posers

Photographic

65



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 20203

Overview and scrutiny activity
during 2019-20

Scrutiny reviews of policy and strategy

Communications strategy   

18 June 2019 and 3 December 2019

Communications has a vital role to play in helping the
council deliver its vision, priorities and objectives to
local people across the borough. To communicate
effectively means to listen as well as broadcast, and
it only works when what we are saying is clear and
easy to understand. Giving that we are a council
delivering a wide range of complex services to more
than 90,000 residents, we need a clear
communications strategy to help face the challenges
of communicating effectively. 

Alongside regular promotion of council services, there
are some significant projects in the pipeline - such as
the response to Covid-19, pushing forward with
business transformation, the Ashchurch Rail Bridge
and the Garden Communities projects. It is therefore
vital that the council has a clear strategy for
communicating with the public and embraces
modern digital methods. Utilising multimedia
approaches is important to ensure the council
reaches all audiences. 

The communications strategy’s action plan is
reviewed annually by the committee allowing for
scrutiny on the range of work that has been achieved
to date. In December, a new communications
strategy was presented to the committee setting out
the key communication principles, and objectives
moving forward. The committee was pleased with the
content of the strategy and it was approved at the
Executive committee on 8 January 2020. 

Housing strategy monitoring report

9 April 2019 and 22 October 2019

The Housing Strategy recognises how important it is
for residents to access good quality housing and
housing-related services, which make a real
difference to residents’ lives. Not only is housing
important for the health and well-being of individuals

and families, but it is an important part of building
and maintaining strong communities and supporting
the overall economic prosperity of the borough. 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee plays a key role in
monitoring the outcomes of the strategy. Throughout
the year, the committee received updates on the
progress made on the action plan. Members were
pleased to hear the council was successful in its bid
for the Ministry of Communities, Housing and Local
Government (MCHLG) private sector access funding
of £363,408, which will assist 180 households in one
year through the homelessness prevention
programme. 

The committee was informed that the housing team
had undergone some key improvements, which
included revising Personal Housing Plans - a
document which sets out steps taken to help prevent
someone becoming homeless or to help secure
accommodation. The new plans will help support
those in need and have been updated to include a
home visit service. Supporting the council’s
customer-focused priority, this way of working gives a
better understanding of clients’ situations in a less
intimidating environment. 

Members questioned the number of rough sleepers in
the borough and asked what could be done to reduce
the need for the use of B&B’s as temporary
accommodation. Overall, members felt that the low
numbers across the borough were positive and a
credit to the work of the housing team, which can
often be dealing with very difficult circumstances.

Economic development and tourism

strategy 18 June 2019 

One of the council’s key priorities is ‘promoting and
supporting economic growth’, and this is reflected in
the council’s Economic Development and Tourism
Strategy. The committee was pleased to hear that
significant progress had been made in delivering the
actions for the second year of the strategy. For
example, the committee was updated about the
launch and operation of Tewkesbury Growth Hub’s
first year at the Public Services Centre, and the launch
of the ‘Uncover the Cotswolds’ project aimed at

Tewkesbury Borough Council

66



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 20204

attracting more visitors from European markets.

Following a range of questions from the committee -
such as the potential surrounding the M5 J10 all-
ways junction and the impact of the cyber park - the
committee was happy to recommend to the
Executive Committee that delegation be given to the
deputy chief executive and head of development
services, in consultation with the lead member for
economic development/promotion, to make
amendments to the strategy. 

Safeguarding policy

11 February 2020 

Safeguarding is everybody’s responsibility - all
members and employees, and other statutory
partners have a duty to report all safeguarding
concerns to relevant safeguarding authorities.  

The committee was informed that the council’s
Safeguarding Policy had originally been adopted in
November 2016 and that it details issues around
children and vulnerable adults and how to work with
partners to respond to and report any incidents. Since
the policy was adopted there have been significant
changes to the policy, including the incorporation of
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and a
significant change in the way safeguarding, especially
safeguarding children, is delivered countywide. 

The committee focused its scrutiny around the
training in place for staff and the requirement for
volunteers to undergo a Disclosure and Barring
Service (DBS) check. Overall, members supported the
changes and the policy was approved at Executive
Committee on 4 March 2020.

Presentations made to overview and

scrutiny

Citizens’ Advice Bureau (CAB) 

10 September 2019

The Citizens’ Advice Bureau provides free,
confidential, independent and impartial advice to
everyone on their rights and responsibilities. The

service operates from 15 locations, seven of which
are in Tewkesbury Borough. For several years, the
Citizens’ Advice Bureau (CAB) have had a service level
agreement with the council, supporting the work they
provide - and the council awards a grant of £52,000
to the CAB. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee
plays a key role in monitoring the effectiveness of this
grant.

During the presentation in September, the CAB
representative confirmed they had undergone a
structure change and have now been renamed as
‘North and West Gloucestershire Citizens’ Advice’ to
reflect that the service now covers Tewkesbury,
Cheltenham, Gloucester and the Forest of Dean. In
the first nine months of 2019, the service had helped
1,229 clients - with the main issues being around
benefits, debt, relationships, employment and
housing. Since April 2019, clients had benefited from
£1,832,984 of financial gains. 

Members asked whether further outreach work was
carried out in rural parishes and were pleased to hear
that consideration would be given to new locations,
provided there was sufficient demand for at least a
half day’s service. 

Gfirst Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)

14 January 2020 

Gfirst Local Enterprise Partnership’s (LEP) mission is
to make Gloucestershire great by driving sustainable
economic growth throughout the county, creating
jobs and business opportunities for people.

During a presentation in January, the committee was
updated on the LEP investments made within
Tewkesbury Borough, as well as progress on the
Growth Hub network, details on the inward
investment team and the Local Industrial Strategy. 

Successful cases were highlighted within the
presentation, such as GFirst LEP securing £101m of
growth deal funding, which has been used to fund
high-profile projects within the county – including the
£10million roundabout at Elmbridge Court to improve
road infrastructure. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council

67



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 2020

Updates were also given on other projects in 
Tewkesbury Borough and following a range of 
questions, members were given assurance that any 
project funded by the GFirst LEP had to go through 
scrutiny. The committee also received information 
comparing the statistics of the Growth Hubs within 
Gloucestershire which included; the number of 
visitors, reasons for visiting and our interventions. 
This highlighted that Tewkesbury’s Growth Hub had 
attracted more than 1,700 visitors since its opening in 
October 2018. 

Growth Hub

11 February 2020 

The Growth Hub is a business support programme to 
help growing businesses by offering advice and 
support. The hub celebrated its first year of operation 
in the council’s Public Services Centre in November 
and its success was presented to the Overview and 
Scrutiny committee in February. 

During the presentation, the committee heard that 
over 4,000 businesses had received support 
interactions, support had been provided for over 100 
start-up businesses and multiple business events had 
been held in the hub. These statistics, when 
compared to other larger hubs, showed that the 
Tewkesbury Borough Growth Hub was ‘punching 
above its weight’. Testimonials from previous and 
current growth hub tenants were also provided, 
highlighting how the programme provided key 
support for the success of these businesses’ growth.

Members noted that the Tewkesbury Growth Hub had 
been described in the presentation as being the first 
Growth Hub in the world to be delivered in a local 
authority setting, which the committee found 
impressive. As part of on-going monitoring it was 
agreed an annual report on economic growth will be 
provided to the committee to include performance of 
the Growth Hub and the impact on businesses within 
the borough.

5

Overview and Scrutiny working

groups

Grounds maintenance working groups

28 May 2019

In response to the Executive Committee’s concerns,
and the unacceptable level of complaints being
received from residents in 2018 about the level and
quality of grass cutting across the borough, a Grass
Cutting Improvement Plan was adopted with the
responsibility for monitoring given to the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee. 

This included the formation of a Grass Cutting
Improvement Plan Working Group. The group
successfully contributed to a number of
improvements and provided suggestions to help
expand the range of work carried out. One of the
proposals was to establish a new working group,
which would oversee the delivery of the council's
maintenance service, and consider and develop a
number of potential longer-term projects. The report
and formation of a new Grounds Maintenance
Working Group were approved by the Executive
Committee on 6 March 2019.

The committee’s working group met four times and
produced a number of recommendations that
included:

• A comprehensive schedule of rates to be
considered - to ensure Ubico’s pricing is
competitive.

• Planning policy - to consider, where possible,
innovative approaches to grounds maintenance
and planning policies when it comes to new
public open spaces.

• Wildflower planting - discussions around the use
of wildflower planting, which could reduce the
need for grass cutting in the future.

• Maintenance of land on behalf of Gloucestershire
County Highways.

• Grass cutting standards - a new performance
target to be set for Ubico to reduce the number of
low-quality cuts carried out.

• Potential for hiring contract equipment or sharing
equipment across Ubico partners.

• Officers to continue to work with partners e.g.
parish councils, to identify opportunities to deliver
efficiencies.

Tewkesbury Borough Council

68



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 20206

At its final meeting, the working group considered
that while there is a continued role for members to
play in terms of monitoring grounds maintenance,
this should be included in the work of the Depot
Services Working Group, which also has a wider remit
to look at the Ubico contract. The report of the
working group and the recommendation that future
monitoring of grounds maintenance be undertaken by
the Depot Services Working Group were approved at
Executive Committee on 4 March 2020.

Depot services working group

23 July 2019

Following regular reports at the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on the performance of the
council's waste, recycling, street cleansing, grounds
maintenance and trade waste service by Ubico, the
committee raised concerns about a perceived lack of
control and transparency. It was highlighted how
important it is that members fully understand the
relationship between Ubico and Tewkesbury Borough
Council, including what being part of a teckal
arrangement meant in terms of the level of control
the council had over the company. In order to
facilitate this, the committee was asked to establish a
Depot Services Working Group, which would report
back to the committee on a bi-annual basis. 

The committee's working group has so far met twice
and considered reports and information pertinent to
the operation and strategic direction of the services
Ubico provides. This included receiving and reviewing:

An overview of Ubico Ltd
• Partnership arrangements
• Governance structure  
• Financial and performance information
• Operational aspects of the Ubico contract 

delivery
• Draft business plan for 2020/21 from Ubico.

A progress report from the group was due to be
presented to the committee in April 2020. This was
subsequently delayed following the emergency
response to Covid-19 pandemic and will be reported
to the committee at a later date. 

Parking strategy working group

18 June 2019

The committee was informed that the current Parking
Strategy, adopted in 2015, was due for review and
was asked to establish a working group of four
members along with the lead member of economic
development/ promotion and finance and asset
management. The remit of the group was to consider
current and future parking needs, create a strategy
that supports the economic needs of the borough,
consider further deployment of technology - including
electric vehicle charging points and new pay and
display machines - and to feed into the
Gloucestershire County Council’s on-street parking
review, which will include parking in Tewkesbury
Town.

The working group continues to meet regularly, and is
gathering, considering and reviewing a range of
information; including data, evidence and responses
from focus groups - made up of representatives from
town councils, local businesses and special interest
groups. This will enable the group to produce a draft
strategy, that will encompass not only specific car
park-related issues but also ensure that the wider
regeneration and the economic development
requirements in our urban centres and the wider
borough are factored in. Once finalised, the new
strategy will be presented to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. 

Special meeting

Notice of motion declaring a climate

change emergency

13 August 2019

The issue of climate change is something that has an
impact globally. The council has already shown a
strong commitment to addressing this by
establishing a single-use plastics policy and
promoting the use of sustainable transport through
its car-pool scheme.

At a Council meeting on 30 July 2019, members
referred the motion to declare a climate change
emergency to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee,

Tewkesbury Borough Council

69



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 20207

to consider the wording and make a recommendation
back to Council. A special Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting was held in August to discuss
the motion in detail.

The proposer of the motion addressed the committee
in August and raised their concerns about the
environment, explaining that declaring a climate
change emergency would mean that carbon dioxide
emissions would factor in all future decisions. 

Following a detailed and useful discussion, the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed
amendments to the wording of the motion and a
report outlining the recommendations was taken to
Council in October 2019, where members declared a
climate change 
emergency. 

As part of this, members agreed to committing to
make Tewkesbury Borough Council offices carbon
neutral by 2030 and to working with partners in
Gloucestershire to achieve countywide neutrality
aims. It was also agreed to expand the remit of the
existing Flood Risk Management Group to deal with
climate change matters and to devise a detailed
action plan for the delivery of this. Moving forward,
the action plan will be monitored by Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. 

The council recognises that it is important to carefully
manage its carbon footprint and support the climate
change declaration. As a result, a new priority
‘sustainable environment’ has been created in the
new Council Plan 2020-24, which will be carefully
monitored by this committee through the
performance tracker.

Other general areas of review

Performance management

Quarterly reports

The committee has an important role in scrutinising
the delivery of actions within the Council Plan. To
achieve this, on a quarterly basis, the committee
receives detailed information through the ‘Council
Plan Performance Tracker’. This provides a range of
qualitative and quantitative information so the

committee can clearly see the progression of actions,
review missed target dates, monitor financial
performance and, where appropriate, refer for a
response or action from the Executive Committee. 

During the year, the committee has scrutinised a wide
range of service activity including sickness absence,
Spring Gardens regeneration site, planning
processing times and the target dates of various
actions, to assess whether they are realistic.

Community Safety Partnership (CSP)

update

9 April 2019

At its meeting in April, the committee received an
update on the work Tewkesbury Borough Community
Safety Partnership group had achieved in its first year,
giving a multi-agency approach to dealing with issues
such as anti-social behaviour, domestic abuse and
hate crime. The partnership has an approved term of
reference and it is now in the process of setting local
priorities for the borough.  

Work has begun on the Community Safety Strategy of
the borough and once completed a draft will be
brought back to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. Members raised concerns on the lack of
communication to local members about community
safety issues but were pleased to hear that as a
result of the new priorities local members would start
to see an improvement to this. 

Customer care strategy action pan

9 April 2019

We commit to putting our customers first and in our
Council Plan we make the promise that we will put
the needs of our customers at the heart of what we
do. The Customer Care strategy is an important step
to making this a reality.  

To help achieve this, the strategy is supported by an
action plan, which is monitored by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on an annual basis. The
committee was asked to review the progress made in
the 2018/19 action plan, which highlighted the

Tewkesbury Borough Council

70



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 20208

achievement of embedding the customer care
standards into the way each service conducts its
work and the improvements made to online forms to
support the council’s digital ambition. The committee
was pleased with the progress made, and following a
discussion around the importance of ensuring
customer care is seen as a corporate-wide
responsibility, it was agreed a new Customer Care
Strategy will be written for 2020/21 to reflect the
changes that have been made and to factor in the
new challenges relating to the recovery phase of
Covid-19 emergency.

Enviro-crime report

18 June 2019 and 14 January 2020

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee played a key
role in monitoring the approach to tackling enviro-
crimes. Over several years the committee has been at
the forefront of driving the council’s enviro-crimes
agenda and vast improvements have been made.
Reports are provided to the committee on a six-
monthly basis giving updates on the progress of the
enviro-crimes action plan.

Members agreed at its meeting in January 2020, that
they felt tackling enviro-crimes was fully embedded in
the day-to-day operations of the Environmental
Health team, and therefore no further reports would
be brought back to the committee unless there was
change to this position. Enviro-crimes will continue to
be monitored on a quarterly basis through the
performance tracker. 

Single-use plastics update 

18 June 2019

In July 2018, Council passed a motion, recognising
the staggering environmental impact caused by the
use of single-use plastics. A report identifying central
government's new waste strategy and actions to
eliminate single-use plastics from the council
operations by 2020 was endorsed by Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in June 2019. 

As a result, disposable drinking cups and lids have
been replaced by cardboard alternatives, and vending

machines containing plastic water bottles have been
removed from the Public Services Centre and
replaced with water supply machines. Additional
procedures were also put in place in the procurement
process to ensure suppliers reduce and work towards
avoiding single-use plastics where possible.

Ubico performance report

23 July 2019

Waste, recycling, grounds maintenance and street
cleansing are all services that have a direct impact on
our communities, so it is important to ensure that
they are delivered effectively and efficiently. Ubico
has been delivering these services for Tewkesbury
Borough Council since April 2015, with the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee playing a key role in
monitoring Ubico’s performance. 

As a high-profile service, the committee continues to
monitor performance, particularly around financial
outturn. A detailed report was brought to committee
in July outlining the 2018/19 outturn performance on
all services provided by Ubico. Following a request
from this committee, the report contained newly
adopted key performance indicators, health and
safety statistics, the annual commissioner report and
a corporate update outlining Ubico’s progress
throughout the year.

Following questions from members, it was agreed
that changes to the way some of the figures were
presented in the key performance indicators needed
to be considered but overall it was felt Ubico had
been on quite a journey and significant improvements
had been made.  

Trade waste 

14 January 2020

A commercial waste collection service is offered to
businesses throughout the borough. The weekly
service is delivered by our contractors Ubico, with a
range of options to choose from. 

Through the performance tracker, the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee wanted to know more about the

Tewkesbury Borough Council

71



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 2020

Tewkesbury Borough Council

9

effectiveness of the trade waste service and
questioned whether it was providing a competitive
service. The committee asked for a report to be
provided, which sets out current service provision
and any possible improvements.

This report was brought to the committee in
February 2019 and questions were raised about the
necessity of the trade waste service given the current
cost to the council. It was agreed further work was to
be carried out on all options, which included a
recommendation on the long-term sustainability of
the trade waste service going forward.     

In January 2020, a confidential report was presented
to the committee giving information on the council’s
existing service and the potential options for how the
service might be delivered on a more commercial
basis going forward. Debates were had and
members amended the recommendation to the
Executive Committee, so that a detailed business
case for a pilot be prepared and reviewed by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee before a final
decision is made. The recommendation was
approved at Executive Committee. 

As a result of effective scrutinising by the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee to ensure the council
continues to provide the best services possible for its
communities, the Association for Public Service
Excellence (APSE) has now been appointed to
undertake a review of the service. This will include a
detailed market analysis and assessments to form a
detailed business case. On completion this will be
brought back to a future Overview and Scrutiny
Committee to consider. 

Development services review action

plan

9 April 2019 and 22 October 2019

The development services review action plan was
brought to the committee meetings in April and
October 2019. The committee was pleased to hear
about the progress made on the action plan and
noted that the majority of actions had been
completed. The development services review was
approved at Council in April 2018 and the action plan
had been devised as a tool to help manage service
improvement, with the Overview and Scrutiny

Committee specifically tasked with monitoring the
progress. 

The committee was informed of changes undertaken
as a result of the action plan, including a new
structure and additional monitoring reports consisting
of key performance indicators. 

Members requested a further report to be brought to
the committee detailing the outcomes of a recent
customer satisfaction survey, to gain assurance that
the work carried out had benefited customers. This
report has been delayed as a result of Covid-19 and
will now be brought to a future Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting.  

Review of planning enforcement plan

22 October 2019

The Planning Enforcement Plan sets out the council's
principles and approaches to delivering the planning
enforcement service.  

Members were given a detailed report of the team's
performance between April and September 2019,
which included the number of live and closed cases,
timescales and issues that had arisen since the
approval of the plan - for example the difficultly of
replacing qualified and experienced enforcement
officers who had left the authority. 

The committee felt it was important it was kept
regularly updated on the statistics of planning
enforcement cases, and subsequently this will be
included in future reports of the planning key
performance indicators.  

Annual review of planning committee

overturns

23 July 2019

As part of its monitoring of the Development Services
Review action plan, the committee requested a
separate report to review the annual template of
Planning Committee Overturns. This was brought to 
the committee in July 2019. 

Members raised concerns around the content of the
template and felt there was a lack of statistics to

72



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 2020

Tewkesbury Borough Council

10

allow comparison from previous years to help
identify trends and patterns, particularly in terms of
policy impact. Officers indicated that, while possible,
it would be resource-intensive and time-consuming
to gather the data and it would inevitably impact on
other projects such as the Planning Enforcement
Plan review. A vote was undertaken by the
committee and the motion was lost, the committee
subsequently agreed the template would be
populated looking forward as opposed to
retrospectively for the two years preceding 2018/19.

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) review

monitoring report

18 June 2019

As part of the committee’s monitoring role, it
receives reports on a bi-annual basis identifying the
progress made to the recommendations following
the DFG review. In June 2019, members were
advised these were complete and closure of the
review was approved. 

The community services team will continue to work
collaboratively with Gloucestershire County Council
to determine the future delivery of DFGs across the
borough and its ongoing success.

Community services improvement plan

23 July 2019

The Community Services Review was approved by
Council on 24 July 2018. The review was
accompanied by an improvement plan setting out a
range of actions aiming to become more customer-
focussed and support more businesses within the
borough. 

The committee was pleased to see that several
actions were complete but noted that recruitment
difficulties had caused some actions not to progress
as well as intended. The committee was pleased to
hear that a change of approach was set to be
adopted, which included contacting schools and
colleges to engage with students who would like a
career in Environmental Health. 

Review of water supply outage

monitoring report 

10 September 2019

In December 2017, 10,000 homes, a substantial
number of businesses, agricultural farmers, the
community hospital and 17 schools were left without
water in the run-up to Christmas. The scale of the
incident was significant and there was national
coverage in the media. There had also been two
previous outages in August and October 2017. 

Due to the impact on the local community, an
Overview and Scrutiny working group was established
in 2018 to review the incident and capture any lessons
that could be learnt. This was a significant piece of
work, and included engaging through workshops and
hearings with various agencies, businesses and
members of the community to understand the impact
it caused and how effective the response was.

In September 2019, an annual report was received and
the committee noted the progress made against the
action plan arising from the review, where all
outstanding actions for Tewkesbury Borough Council
had been achieved. Severn Trent Water confirmed
new water pipes would be installed in the area on the
Severn Ham, which proved to be where the failures
had occurred. The committee invited Severn Trent
Water to give a presentation upon completion of the
works. 

Complaints report 

10 September 2019

The committee receives an annual complaints report
detailing the level of complaints received by the
council and the service areas they relate to.
Understanding and responding to complaints forms
an important element of the council’s customer care
and helps indicate how well the council is performing.
The council is consistently benchmarked as being one
of the best performers nationally in relation to the low
number of complaints received.

Between April 2018 and March 2019, 192 formal
complaints were received, of which 175 related to
council services.  Of these, 99 related to the council's
waste service - a high profile service with nearly
4million collections during the course of the year.The

73



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 2020

Tewkesbury Borough Council

11

majority of these were repeated missed bin
collections over a course of time. 

The committee also recognised a spike of
complaints in the first quarter due to an increase in
grass cutting complaints – and recognised this will
not be an issue moving forward due to the
improvements made through the Grass Cutting
Improvement Plan. The committee was pleased to
note that since introducing this plan, a comparison
against the first quarter of 2020/21 showed a
dramatic decrease in complaints with only one
complaint received in relation to grass cutting - a
significant improvement. 

The complaints framework has been in place for four
years and is due for review - this will be undertaken
by the committee and officers in the new financial
year.

Healings Mill 

10 September 2019

Although the mill is not owned by the council, it is an
important piece of the fabric of Tewkesbury Town
Centre and the council has made clear its aspirations
to see the mill redeveloped both in the emerging
Tewkesbury Borough Plan and the Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) for Tewkesbury Town
Centre. 

A report in September 2019 gave an update on the
progress being made to secure a suitable
development scheme for the mill. The committee
was informed that discussions were ongoing with
developers and agents regarding a potential scheme.

Members were also made aware that the council had
submitted a bid for High Street Funding. This would
go towards the regeneration of the town, and the
redevelopment of Healings Mill would feed into the
wider work of Spring Gardens and Oldbury Road 
sites.

Progress reports on the mill development would take
time and members agreed, that as the council does
not have direct influence over it, a further report
would only be submitted to the committee should
there be any significant development that members
needed to be advised of.

Warm and Well scheme update

22 October 2019

One of the council's key priorities is ‘growing and
supporting communities’, and in line with this, it is a
member of the Warm and Well scheme. Along with
other local councils, Tewkesbury Borough Council
contributes £20,000 per year for services provided by
Severn Wye Energy Agency (which leads the scheme)
to help achieve affordable warmth and tackling fuel
poverty across the borough. 

In October, members noted the main achievements
during 2018/19, which included performance figures.
The committee was very pleased to hear that the
scheme has led to an overall annual carbon saving of
265 tonnes and whilst helping our residents it is also
helping our environment too.

As part of the scheme, Severn Wye Energy Agency
runs training sessions on fuel poverty, members
agreed for a session to be arranged in the new year to
gain further knowledge of the scheme. 

Tewkesbury Borough News review 

11 February 2020

Tewkesbury Borough News is the council’s main
proactive communication tool, which is delivered to all
households in the borough. 

In 2019, a member working group was set up to
review Tewkesbury Borough News, which resulted in
the council moving from a newspaper to a magazine
format. This enabled a different, and more informal,
tone to be applied across the articles and lent itself
well to more interviews and features on people and
organisations across the borough.

There were some concerns among members that the
delivery of the magazine wasn’t consistent across the
borough, and officers assured members work had
been carried out to improve this and it would be
investigated further. 

Members were updated on the progress in terms of
the review’s final recommendations – including a
contract with a new designer and excellent feedback
from the council’s Citizens’ Panel - and as all
recommendations had been implemented, it was
agreed that no further reports needed to be brought. 

74



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 2020

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Gloucestershire health and care

overview and scrutiny committee

2020/21 financial contribution

11 February 2020

Along with all other Gloucestershire districts,
Tewkesbury Borough Council makes a contribution of
£2,500 to Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview
and Scrutiny Committee. A member of our Overview
and Scrutiny Committee represents the council on
the committee and reports back on the work carried
out and the action being taken at a county level.

On an annual basis, the committee is asked to
consider if the council should continue to be involved
in the health and care committee, and whether value
for money is being achieved.

Given the wealth of reports on vital issues which
impact the lives of people across the borough, and
how it enables us to act as an advocate for the
communities in the borough, members felt strongly
that we continue to have a representative on the
committee and that the payment is continued. 

12

Looking forward

The Overview and Scrutiny committee’s work
programme for the year ahead is now being
reviewed, as the borough emerges from the Covid-
19 pandemic. As always, the programme will be
flexible so any new areas for review can be added
when required. The 2020-2021 draft work
programme can be found in Appendix B 

We know the impact of the pandemic will be felt for
years to come. The Overview and Scrutiny
Committee will be at the forefront of ensuring the
council’s Covid-19 Corporate Recovery Plan is
delivered effectively and efficiently. This will be
achieved by monitoring and scrutinising the
performance of the actions contained within the
plan on a quarterly basis. 

Alongside this, the committee will receive the first
performance report of the new Council Plan (2020-
2024), which includes two new priorities -
‘sustainable environment’ and ‘garden
communities’. Other key areas of activity during the
next financial year include monitoring the delivery
of actions arising from the Local Government
Association (LGA) Peer Challenge final report and
ensuring other service-related improvements are
delivered. 

The committee looks forward to challenging its
effectiveness and will be well supported at officer
level, ensuring it continues to play an important role
in helping deliver successful outcomes for both the
council and its communities. 

75



Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report 202013

How to select a potential scrutiny review appendix A

76



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 

REGULAR ITEMS: 
• Executive Committee Forward Plan
• Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2020/21

Additions to 

Deletions from 

Committee Date: 1 September 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Citizens’ Advice Bureau 
Presentation 

To consider the annual update on 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau activity in the 
borough. 

Economic and Community 
Development Manager 

No. 

Complaints Report To consider the annual update to provide 
assurance that complaints are managed 
effectively. 

Head of Corporate Services No. 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Annual Report 

To approve the annual report as 
required by the Council’s Constitution 
to ensure that the activities of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
promoted both internally and publicly 
to reinforce transparency and 
accountability in the democratic 
process. 

Head of Corporate Services Yes - moved from 14 April 2020 as 
meeting cancelled due to COVID-
19.

Appendix B

14

77



Committee Date: 1 September 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (17 July 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (14 July 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (2 July 2020). 

N/A No. 

CONFIDENTIAL ITEM – 
Trade Waste Services 

To consider the detailed business 
case on the pilot proposal and other 
third party options and to make a 
recommendation to the Executive 
Committee. 
 To receive a progress update. 

Head of Community Services Yes – moved from 16 June 2020 as 
meeting cancelled due to COVID-
19.

Appendix B

15

78



Committee Date: 13 October 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Motion – Support for Tech 
Talent Charter 

To consider the motion and make a 
recommendation to Council in 
December. 

Head of Corporate Services No – motion deferred by Council 
on 28 July 2020. 

Performance Report – 
Quarter 1 2020/21 

To review and scrutinise the 
performance management information 
and, where appropriate, to require 
response or action from the Executive 
Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020 to allow new tracker to be 
produced and KPIs to be reviewed 
where necessary.  
NB This may mean the recovery 
tracker (due to be approved at 
Executive Committee on 5 August 
2020) can also be included. 

Review of Corporate 
Enforcement Policy 

To consider the revised Corporate 
Enforcement Policy and recommend 
to the Executive Committee that it be 
approved. 

Head of Corporate Services / 
Counter Fraud Manager 

Yes – moved from 14 April 2020 as 
meeting cancelled due to COVID-
19. 

Depot Services Working 
Group Update 

To receive the biannual update on the 
progress of the Depot Services Working 
Group. 

Head of Community Services Remove as the Working Group 
has not met for a number of 
months so no progress has been 
made.  Next update scheduled for 
6 April 2021. 

Appendix B

16

79



Committee Date: 13 October 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Housing Strategy Review 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the progress made in 
respect of the outcomes identified in the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan. To 
approve the Terms of Reference and 
establish membership of the Working 
Group. 

Head of Community Services No – Working Group to be 
established to produce a new 
Housing Strategy.  Proposed to 
take the draft revised strategy to 
O&S on 21 April 2021. 

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (18 September 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (15 September 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (16 September 2020). 

N/A No. 

Appendix B

17

80



Committee Date: 24 November 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Economic Development 
and Tourism Strategy 
2017-21 

To consider the progress made 
against the delivery of the Economic 
Development and Tourism Strategy 
2017-21. 

Economic and Community 
Development Manager 

Yes – moved from 16 June 2020 
(meeting cancelled) to allow time 
for feedback from the business 
community and consider how 
COVID-19 impacts upon the 
strategy. 

Update on Battlefield 
Project Plan, 2021 Group 
and Independent Tourism 
Review 

To receive an overview of the project 
plan and the 2021 group and an 
update on the independent tourism 
review (as agreed at the O&S meeting 
on 10 March 2020).  

Economic and Community 
Development Manager 

Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020 in order to tie in with the 
Economic Development Strategy 
due to its overlap. 

Ubico Report 2019/20 To consider the Ubico performance 
report for 2019/20. 

Head of Community Services Yes – moved from 14 July 2020.  
The Ubico report needs to be 
revised significantly – 
performance monitoring resource 
at Ubico is limited and this will 
give time to review and revise the 
report for Committee. 

Workforce Development 
Strategy Review 

To consider progress made against 
delivery of the Workforce 
Development Strategy. 

Head of Corporate Services Yes – moved from 16 June 2020 
(meeting cancelled) due to impact 
of COVID-19. 

Appendix B

18

81



Committee Date: 24 November 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Gloucestershire Police and 
Crime Panel Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (6 November 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (17 November 2020). 

N/A No. 

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Update 

To receive an update from the Council’s 
representative on matters considered at 
the last meeting (21 October and 18 
November 2020). 

N/A No. 

Appendix B

19

82



Committee Date: 12 January 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Report – 
Quarter 2 2020/21 (including 
recovery plan tracker) 

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management information and, where 
appropriate, to require response or action 
from the Executive Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Private Rented Housing 
Sector Scheme 

To receive a report on progress of the 
Private Rented Housing Sector 
Scheme (as agreed at the O&S 
meeting on 10 March 2020). 

Head of Community Services Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020.  The pilot was due to end in 
October but the countywide 
partnership is considering 
extending this – much of the work 
has paused due to COVID-19. 

Parking Strategy Review To endorse the findings of the Parking 
Strategy Review and approve the draft 
strategy for public consultation. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management 

Yes – moved from 16 June 2020.  
Working Group to recommence in 
September following a seven 
month hiatus – revised timetable 
suggests 1 July 2021 
implementation rather than 1 April 
2021. 

Customer Care Strategy To endorse the Customer Care 
Strategy and action plan for 2021/22. 

Head of Corporate Services Yes – moved from 14 April 2020 
(meeting cancelled) due to impact 
of COVID-19. 

Communications Strategy 
2020-24 

To consider the progress made against 
the actions within the Communications 
Strategy during 2020/21 and to endorse 
the action plan for 2021/22. 

Corporate Services Manager No. 

Appendix B

20

83



Committee Date: 12 January 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Planning Committee 
Overturns 

To review and scrutinise Planning 
Committee overturns 2019/20 (to include 
comparisons with other local authorities; 
a summary page to set out the trends 
that Officers had identified; and a Call-in 
section to include a reason for the 
application going to Planning Committee 
e.g. Member call-in, objection from
Parish Council – (as agreed by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its
meeting on 23 July 2019).

Head of Development Services No. 

Appendix B

21

84



Committee Date: 9 February 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Annual Report on 
Economic Growth 

To receive an annual report on 
economic growth to include 
performance of the Growth Hub and 
businesses within the borough (as 
agreed at O&S on 11 February 2020). 

Economic and Community 
Development Manager. 

No – previously in pending items. 

Gloucestershire Health and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 2021/22 
Financial Contribution 

To conduct the annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
involvement in the Gloucestershire 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in order to authorise payment of the 
Council’s contribution to the running 
costs for the forthcoming year.  

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Appendix B

22

85



Committee Date: 9 March 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Performance Report – 
Quarter 3 2020/21 (including 
recovery plan tracker) 

To review and scrutinise the performance 
management information and, where 
appropriate, to require response or action 
from the Executive Committee. 

Head of Corporate Services No. 

Parking Strategy Review To review consultation responses and 
make a recommendation to the 
Executive Committee. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management 

Yes – moved from 1 September 
2020.  Working Group to 
recommence in September 
following a seven month hiatus – 
revised timetable suggests 1 July 
2021 implementation rather than 1 
April 2021. 

Community Services 
Improvement Plan 

To consider the progress made 
against the Community Services 
Improvement Plan. 

Head of Community Services Yes – moved from 14 July 2020.  
Little activity has taken place over 
recent months due to COVID-19. 

Appendix B

23

86



Committee Date: 6 April 2021 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Depot Services Working 
Group Update 

To receive the biannual update on the 
progress of the Depot Services Working 
Group. 

Head of Community Services No – however, this will be the first 
update to the Committee as a prior 
update has been removed from 
the meeting on 13 October. 
  The Working Group has not met 
for a number of months so no 
progress has been made. 

Housing Strategy Review 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the progress made in 
respect of the outcomes identified in the 
Housing Strategy Action Plan. To 
approve the revised Housing Strategy 
prior to consideration by Executive 
Committee/Council. 

Head of Community Services No. 

Customer Care Strategy To consider the progress made in 
relation to the actions contained within 
the Customer Care Strategy 2020/21 and 
to endorse the action plan for 2021/22. 

Corporate Services Manager No. – Update now scheduled for 12 
January 2021 so this item will not 
be needed until April 2022. 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Annual Report 
2020/21 

To approve the annual report as required 
by the Council’s Constitution to ensure 
that the activities of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are promoted, both 
internally and publicly, to reinforce 
transparency and accountability in the 
democratic process. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Appendix B

24

87



PENDING ITEMS 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
Review 

To approve Terms of Reference and establish membership of the Working Group. 
To endorse Working Group report and recommend it to the Executive Committee/Council for 
adoption  
Review previously scheduled to commence in April 2020, postponed as not appropriate in current 
climate.  

Review of Complaints Policy Identified for review in the Corporate Policies and Strategies Report and agreed by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 4 September 2018 – Overview and Scrutiny Committee advised at 
its meeting on 10 September 2019 that this will be via Workshop or Working Group. 

Presentation from Severn Trent Water Date to be agreed once work has finished (August 2020?) - To receive a presentation from Severn Trent 
Water on the works carried out to the Severn Ham as a result of the Scrutiny Review of Water Supply 
Outage – as agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 10 September 2019. 

LGA Peer Challenge Report Action Plan To monitor implementation of the action plan (currently awaiting peer challenge report). 

Appendix B

25

88



ITEMS FOR INCLUSION IN 2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME 

June 2021 – Corporate Policies and 
Strategies 

To consider the corporate polices and strategies and identify which will be reviewed by the Committee 
during 2020/21. 
Annual item but removed from 2020/21 work programme as unlikely to have capacity for additional 
reviews this year. 

July 2021 – Climate Change Strategy 
Annual Report 

To receive the annual report on the work of the Climate Change and Flood Risk Management Group.  
Annual report required 12 months after carbon audit and indicative action plan considered by Council. 

September 2021 – Development 
Services Improvement Plan 

To receive an update on the outcomes of the customer satisfaction survey on experience of planning 
application process and the pre-application planning advice service and, if relevant, an explanation on 
any outstanding actions 
Due to be taken to 16 June 2020 but delayed to allow time for the Technical Planning Manager to work 
with the team, including the new Head of Development Services, on survey results following decision for 
Business Transformation Manager to move to Gloucester City Council full-time. 

Appendix B

26

89



Graeme Simpson
Head of Corporate Services

Tewkesbury Borough Council
Tel: 01684 272002

email: graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk

Produced by Tewkesbury Borough Council.  August 2020
90


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Executive Committee Forward Plan
	6 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2020/21
	Appendix 1 - O&S Work Programme 2020-21

	8 Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel Update
	9 Gloucestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Update
	10 Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee Update
	11 Complaints Report
	Appendix 1 - Complaints Report
	Appendix 2- Ombudsman Letter

	12 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20
	Appendix 1 - Annual Overview  Scrutiny Report 2019-20




